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Strategic aimsOur purpose and our values
St Ann’s is one of the oldest and largest hospices outside of London, and we care for thousands of patients from 
across Greater Manchester every year.  Our services are delivered from our three sites in Heald Green, Little Hulton, 
and The Neil Cliffe Centre in Wythenshawe Hospital, as well as via a range of community and outreach services.

Our core purpose is ‘to provide excellent care and support to people living with, or affected by, life-limiting illnesses’.

We believe everyone has the right 
to access the same high quality, 
specialist care at the end 
of their life as they do 
when they’re born.

We’re passionate about providing 
care that supports our patients 
right from the point of diagnosis, 
through treatment, and beyond.

Our patients and their loved ones 
are at the heart of everything we 
do, and always will be.

The care we provide is truly holistic. 
Our patients are individuals and 
our care addresses their unique 
needs, whatever they 
may be.

Our values
Our core values are embedded in all aspects of our work, and are at the heart of everything we do.

Inclusive Professional Compassionate Respectful

To be an 
organisation of choice:
• Ensure St Ann’s remains a great place to work
• Foster development opportunities and 

engagement that leads to a skilled and 
engaged workforce

• Nurture staff and volunteer wellbeing
• Endeavour to offer competitive terms, 

conditions and benefits.

To provide world-class, 
innovative care:
• Delivery of excellent care, free of 
 charge and equitably
• Care at a time that’s right for each individual, 

including disadvantaged groups
• Seek and share best practices
• Integration of research, teaching and learning to 

improve patient care.

To continue to develop a 
values-based culture 
within which there are 
high-performing individuals 
and teams:
• Ensure inspired, inspirational and visionary 

leadership, contributing to a highly capable, 
flexible workforce at all levels

• Continuous evaluation of Board performance 
and membership to ensure effective 
governance

• Trustees, Executives and Senior Managers will 
lead by example, exhibiting our core values.

To develop appropriate 
environments and 
outreach services to 
facilitate world-class specialist 
palliative and end of life care:
• Deliver buildings and infrastructure we are 

proud of
• Ensure they are suitable, safe and facilitate 

effective performance
• Enable flexibility to develop and meet emerging 

demands.

To continue to be financially viable:
• Ensure effective financial governance at all times
• Increasing and sustaining engagement with statutory commissioners, NHS Trusts, and grant 

organisations to allow delivery of efficient, effective services
• Encourage innovative fundraising activity via sustainable, diverse income streams
• Develop a robust retail strategy to increase Trading Company income.

As St Ann’s looks towards our 50th anniversary, it’s important that we ensure the hospice remains able to meet the 
changing care needs of future generations.
There are certain things which make us different:
• We are a part of the broad health and social care environment but we’re also an independent charity, able to 

determine our own future.
• Our clinical strategy is at the heart of everything we do.
• Our workforce is supported by a large number of volunteers.
• The majority of our funding comes directly from our supporters and local communities.
• We don’t charge for our core service at the point of delivery.
• Our reputation is the key to our future and the type and quality of service we provide is therefore directly linked 

to that reputation.
• We are a true local charity, serving our local communities.
Our strategic aims put patients and their carers first:
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02 Highlights of 2018/19

It really is next level treatment that 
patients receive at St Ann’s. The amount 
of one on one personal care I’ve received 
has been far and beyond anything I’ve 
experienced before. Everyone goes 
the extra mile to help out and never 
begrudgingly - always with a smile. 
St Ann’s Patient
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St Ann’s in numbers 

We need to raise around £20,000 a day 
to keep our services running.

In 2018/19 we 
had an incredible

733
volunteers

supporting our work 
across our sites

and shops.

Our amazing 
volunteers gave a 

staggering

73,000
hours of their time

in 2018/19.

The hours volunteers
donated to the hospice last 

year saved us around 

£570,000
(based on each receiving

national living wage rates).

For every £1 received 80p
is spent on charitable activities. 



May 2018
Our fabulous volunteers were 
shortlisted for the Greater 
Manchester Health and Care 
Champion Awards.

April 2018
More than 1,000 amazing supporters 
came together to raise over £160,000 
at our Manchester Midnight Walk.
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We couldn’t possibly list everything we’ve achieved this year, but here are a few of our highlights…
June 2018
We launched our Vulnerable 
Populations lectures – an innovative 
series aimed at raising awareness of 
palliative and end of life care with a 
wide range of local communities and 
widening access to hospice care. 

July 2018
The BBC followed 
patients and families 
from our Little Hulton 
hospice to create 
national radio and TV 
news content that 
dispelled myths around 
end of life care.

August 2018
St Ann’s was awarded the Investors 
in People Silver accreditation.

September 
2018
Our special celebration 
event awarded staff 
and volunteers for their 
amazing contribution 
to the organisation, and 
looked ahead to what 
future hospice care might 
look like.
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March 2019
We welcomed a delegation 
from the Lithuanian 
government as part of our 
ambition to share best 
practice in hospice care.

January 2019
We opened a second 
specialist furniture shop in 
Ardwick, to complement 
our other furniture store in 
Ladybarn.

What an incredible year.

November 2018
Preparations for Christmas were well underway in November.  As with any other time of the year, we always 
try and make Christmas extra special for our patients, whether by preparing festive menus, arranging gifts and 
experiences, or going the extra mile to help families create special memories.

December 2018
Hundreds took part in our 
annual Light up a Life appeal and 
joined us at special services to 
celebrate and remember their 
loved ones.

February 2019
Our report this month showed that 
we had an amazing 733 volunteers 
supporting us in the last year.  They 
achieved a staggering 73,304 hours of 
volunteering between them.

October 2018
We launched Moodle, a brand new online learning platform where staff and colleagues from external 
organisations can access a range of training courses on a variety of topics.  



03 Chair and Chief Executive’s statement

We’re proud to receive fantastic feedback about our
care from our patients and their families. As a charity,
we can only continue that support for local people
thanks to our amazing supporters. We couldn’t
do it without them. 
Eamonn O’Neal, Chief Executive
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Statement from the hospice’s 
Chair Jackie Oldham and 
Chief Executive Eamonn O’Neal
St Ann’s was one of the very first hospices to open its doors following the inception 
of the modern hospice movement by Dame Cicely Saunders nearly half a century 
ago. Since then we have been developing and delivering world-class care to our 
communities.
As we now approach our half 
century anniversary in 2021, it 
is our responsibility to emulate 
the early pioneers and look to 
the future. We must ensure 
St Ann’s continues to provide 
world-class care and remains at 
the forefront of world-leading 
practice for the next 50 years. 

Our ambitious agenda 
addresses increasing 
demographic demands 
on hospice care and the 
imperatives for delivering 
specialist palliative and end-
of-life care to match the 
current and emerging needs 

of the population.  A report 
commissioned from Health 
Innovation Manchester’s NHS 
Utilisation Management Unit 
has informed our thinking on 
future provision requirements. 
The report concludes that 
there will be an increasingly 
significant, un-met need for 
specialist bed provision; both 
physical beds within a hospice 
building and ‘virtual’ beds 
that allow for care within the 
community and places of 
residence. 

Our strategy to address these 
demands capitalises upon 

strategic and partnership 
collaboration ensuring our 
environment and organisational 
structures continue to deliver a 
wide range of services. 

Of immediate priority is 
complete redevelopment of our 
oldest site in Heald Green. We 
are well positioned to undertake 
a substantial capital build 
initiative drawing upon financial 
reserves already designated to 
‘kick start’ an ambitious capital 
fundraising initiative and 2019/20 
will see the launch of a Capital 
Fundraising Campaign.  To 
steer this Campaign we have 
appointed an experienced 
Capital Campaign Director to 
work alongside our Director of 
Business Development and the 
Head of Fundraising.

Meanwhile we will continue 
to concentrate on strategic 
and operational activity that 
supports our financial and 
clinical objectives. By doing this, 
we will be building upon the 
foundations of our five-year 
Clinical Strategy, our inherent 
values and our overarching 
strategic aims. The coming year 
will see a scheduled mid-term 
review of our Clinical Strategy. 
We also remain committed to 
our staff and volunteers and 
will continue with an annual 
celebration and award ceremony 
to recognise their invaluable 
contribution to St Ann’s.

In terms of financial viability, 
St Ann’s has benefitted from a 
significant commitment by the 
Clinical Commissioning 

Group consortium, resulting in 
a financial uplift and the award 
of a three year contract, with 
a further two year option. This 
reflects and recognises the 
reputational standing of St Ann’s 
Hospice, built over many years, 
relating to world-class service 
delivery and value for money. 

Financial viability of the St 
Ann’s pension scheme is also of 
paramount importance. As at 
31st March 2018, the hospice 
trustees and the pension trustees 
agreed to pay £2m from reserves 
to restore the Scheme to a fully 
funded position and to pay 
monthly contributions equal 
to 19.5 per cent of members’ 
pensionable salaries, to help 
towards the future cost of 
members’ benefits. 

Despite considerable 
commitment against financial 
reserves, six months of hospice 
running costs are retained and 
we continue to develop our 
fundraising strategy to ensure 
financial viability.

Finally, we continue to make a 
leading-edge contribution to the 
Greater Manchester Hospices 
Group (GMH), allowing 
hospice care to be placed 
higher than ever before on the 
agenda of statutory bodies and 
commissioning authorities. 
Having made an impact within 
and beyond the hospice sector, 
we were invited to exhibit and 
showcase the work of St Ann’s 
Hospice and GMH at the World 
Health Care Congress (Europe), 
in March 2019.

We must ensure St Ann’s continues to provide world-class care and remains 
at the forefront of world-leading practice for the next 50 years.

This reflects 
and recognises 
the reputational 
standing of St Ann’s 
Hospice, built over 
many years, relating 
to world-class 
service delivery and 
value for money. 
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At the most difficult time in my life, everyone I came 
into contact with at St Ann’s was caring. They have 
helped me face the future with positivity and hope. 
St Ann’s Patient



Trustees’ Report including Strategic Report
The Trustees of St Ann’s Hospice, who are also Directors of the company for the 
purposes of the Companies Act 2006, submit their annual report, together with the 
financial statements and auditor’s report for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The financial statements comply with the Charities 
Act 2011, the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities 
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 
(FRS102).

Constitution and
governing documents
St Ann’s Hospice is a company limited by guarantee 
(Company No 947220) and is registered as a charity 
under the Charities Act 1960 (Registered Charity 
No 258085). The company incorporated on 3rd 
February 1969 and is governed by a Memorandum 
and Articles of Association. A Board made up 
of Trustees (Directors) runs the company.  Every 
Trustee undertakes to contribute to the assets of 
the company in the event of it being wound up 
during the time he/she is a Trustee or within one year 
afterwards. The amount that may be required will not 
exceed £1 (one pound) for payment of the debts and 
liabilities of the company contracted before the time 
when he/she ceases to be a Trustee.

Aims and objectives
The object of the charity, as set out in its Articles 
of Association, is to promote the relief of illness or 
suffering by:

• The expert care and support of people with 
palliative and end of life needs;

• The provision of services to promote health and 
wellbeing for patients and carers;

• The care and support of family and friends who 
have been bereaved; and

• The advancement of high quality and end of life 
care throughout the community.

St Ann’s Hospice provides holistic care to patients 
with life-limiting illnesses - comprising inpatient 
care, day therapy and supportive outpatient 

services - from its sites at St Ann’s Road North, Heald 
Green, Cheadle; Meadowsweet Lane, off Peel Lane, 
Little Hulton, Salford; and The Neil Cliffe Centre at 
Wythenshawe Hospital. The teams at the hospice 
also provide a range of community and outreach 
services to patients, including care in the place they 
call home via a Hospice at Home service available 
in Salford and Trafford.  The hospice’s Community 
Specialist Palliative Care Team, also supports 
patients in Salford, and a 24-hour telephone advice 
line is available to patients, carers and healthcare 
professionals in Salford, Manchester, Trafford and 
Stockport.

Public benefit statement
In setting our objectives and planning our services, 
the Trustees of St Ann’s Hospice have carefully 
considered the Charity Commission’s general 
guidance on public benefit. St Ann’s Hospice provides 
hospice services free of charge to those individuals 
aged over 18 years with life-limiting illness living in 
the Greater Manchester, Lancashire and Cheshire 
areas. The charity also provides supportive care for 
their families and carers and our care services are 
available, without restriction, to all groups in the 
communities we serve.

20      TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     21

ST ANN’S HOSPICE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS 2018-19

Appointment of Trustees
The Trustees are Directors of the company for the purposes of the Companies Act. 
The Articles of Association state that there shall be a Board of Trustees (also referred 
to as the Board of Directors) which shall consist of not less than five members.

Trustees are appointed following advertisement and interview by a panel of existing 
Trustees. References and Disclosure and Barring Service checks are taken up before 
a formal recommendation is made to the Board by the Chair that the individual is 
appointed. Trustees have an annual appraisal, conducted by the Chair.

Trustee 
Induction 
All new Trustees participate 
in an induction programme 
(reviewed and revised 2017/18) 
aimed at building knowledge 
and understanding of both 
the role and responsibilities of 
a Trustee and the work of the 
hospice. It includes attendance 
at the hospice’s organisational 
induction training attended by 
all new staff.

Organisation
The Board 
administers the 
charity and meets a minimum 
of four times each year.  
The hospice ensures good 
governance through an effective 
committee structure.  Each 
committee meets in between 
Board meetings and supports 
the Board with its work. The 
current structure allows the 
Board to focus on strategic and 
big picture issues by delegating 
responsibility and empowering 
each committee to examine the 
detail and provide the precise 
level of scrutiny that is necessary.  
By employing this structure 
it allows the committees to 
provide assurance to the Board 

and supports the flow of 
solutions, recommendations, and 
ideas.

Delegated 
Decision 
Making
A Scheme of Delegation 
approved by the Board is in 
place which sets out in detail the 
matters and powers delegated 
to the Chief Executive. The 
Chief Executive is ultimately 
accountable to the Board for 
ensuring that the hospice meets 
its obligation to perform its 
functions within the available 
financial and other resources.

Internal 
Control 
and Risk 
Management
The Audit Committee has 
been appointed to advise 
on the effectiveness of the 
hospice’s internal control 
and management systems 
and to ensure all activities 
undertaken are subject to a 
continuous review for economy, 
effectiveness and efficiency. The 
committee also has oversight 

of financial control, governance 
and risk-management across all 
facets of the organisation. The 
management of individual risks 
is delegated to relevant sub 
committees of the Board.

The Audit Committee receives 
reports from the internal auditor 
on both financial and non-
financial matters. Clinical audit 
responsibilities are discharged 
to the Clinical Quality and 
Performance Committee. 
It also receives reports from the 
Executive Team and relevant sub 
committees on the identification 
and management of strategic 
and operational risks. The Audit 
Committee also meets the 
external auditors.
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St Ann’s Directorates
Our activities are organised under the following directorates:

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

Clinical Services

• Oversees strategic and operational clinical management and 
leadership across all patient services (inpatient units, day 
therapy, supportive and medical outpatient services, Hospice 
@ Home, Community Specialist Palliative Care Team, clinical 
training, education and development).

• Director of Clinical Services is the Senior Information Risk 
Owner (SIRO) for the organisation.

Medical

• Comprises consultants and doctors that work across the 
health and care ecosystem

• Provides medical assessment and management of hospice 
patients

• Medical Director is also the Caldicott Guardian for the 
organisation.

Communications & Marketing

• Responsible for hospice brand

• Creates compelling content in print and online to engage local 
communities and supporters and cement our position as one 
of the city’s most loved charities.

Organisational Development & Support Services

• Oversees a wide range of functions across the hospice

• Department comprises human resources, training and 
organisational development, estates, facilities, IT, and health 
and safety.

Business Development

• Comprises three departments - finance, fundraising and 
trading

• Overseeing the capital campaign and planned rebuild of the 
Heald Green hospice

• Maximises revenue and identifies new diverse sources of 
income.

Medical Director

Deputy Chief 
Executive & 
Director of 

Clinical Services

Director of 
Organisational 
Development & 
Support Services

Director of 
Business 

Development

Committees of the Board
Each Board committee is chaired by a Trustee who reports to the Board at each meeting on the matters considered 
by each committee. Membership of a committee varies, with each containing at least three Trustees, two or more 
Directors, and a handful of department heads.

This year we have continued to broaden the expertise of our Board as we 
continue to innovate, to develop links externally, and strengthen our finances. 
Jackie Oldham, Chair

* Extraordinary Committee of the Board (convened July 2018)

Bo
ar

d 
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ru
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s

Audit Committee
Responsible for ensuring St Ann’s fulfils its corporate 
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, internal 
control systems, risk management systems, internal and 
external audit function, and annual reporting.

Clinical Quality & Performance Committee
Responsible for ensuring appropriate scrutiny is provided into 
quality standards, care delivery, and patient experience and 
safety, providing assurances on systems and processes, driving 
improvements in quality care, and monitoring all levels of risk.

Finance Committee
Responsible for high-level scrutiny of finance and business 
performance, robustness of financial systems, analyses and 
assurances,  strategic investments, pensions, risk, internal 
controls and policies, and annual reporting.

Human Resources Committee
Responsible for monitoring remuneration, employment 
policies, changes in conditions, overseeing matters of equality, 
diversity and inclusivity, and monitoring the delivery of non-
clinical training and development.

Strategic Development Committee
Responsible for optimising and developing new strategic 
opportunities, analysing the external environment and 
planning for sustainability, overseeing strategic developments 
and reviewing all income generation strategies.

Capital Fundraising Committee
Responsible for overseeing all fundraising strategies for large 
capital projects, identifying and recommending individuals 
to participate in capital fundraising, and monitoring and 
promoting all capital fundraising projects.

Clinical Quality
& Performance

Audit

Finance

Human Resources

Strategic
Development

Capital Fundraising 
Appeal*



TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     25

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS 2018-19

24      TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ST ANN’S HOSPICE

Achievements and Performance
Clinical and Medical Services:

Clinical Services
Our clinical services continue to be busy 
delivering person centred care to patients 
and their loved ones. Both inpatient units have 
seen a continuing flow of patients with increasing 
dependency, acuity and complex needs throughout 
the patient pathway from referral to discharge or 
death.

The average monthly occupancy rate has been ~80% 
and the average length of stay has been 13.2 days 
calculated within the month. There has been an 
increase in the number of admissions to 610 from 
573 in 2017/18. There has been a slight increase in 
deaths to ~69% compared to last year’s figure of 
66% and the number of discharges has remained 
reasonably static at ~31%

The reporting of clinical data is improving in 
accuracy and evolving as part of a project to inform 
our strategy. St Ann’s has been working alongside 
other Greater Manchester Hospices to develop a 
standardised data set which will enable accurate 
benchmarking and contribute to the wider health 
and social care economy.

There have not been any inspections from the Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) during this period. 
However, due to the changes of how hospices are 
being inspected currently and in the future - that 
being in the hospital directorate - St Ann’s has 
engaged with the relationship owner at the CQC 
in what is proving to be a positive relationship in 
preparation for the next inspection which may 
happen during 2019/20.

The hospice has conducted the Patient led 
Assessment of The Care Environment (PLACE) 
at the Heald Green and Little Hulton sites. Both 

assessments were carried out in April and May 2018. 
Both sites were above the national average for food 
provision and privacy, dignity and wellbeing. The 
Heald Green site was below the national average for 
dementia, disability and condition, appearance and 
maintenance. Following each assessment an action 
plan is developed to work towards improvements. 
The hospice is mindful that work is underway to 
assess the feasibility to realise the ambitions and 
aspirations of a new build for the Heald Green site.

St Ann’s works closely with the NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs). A small proportion 
of this income was conditional on achieving quality 
improvement and innovation goals through the 
Commissioning for Quality and Innovation Payment 
Framework (CQUIN). The two CQUINs, OACC 
(Outcome assessment complexity and collaborative) 
and staff health and wellbeing were achieved.

Quality Accounts
The hospice published the Quality Accounts for this 
reporting period in line with national guidance.

Monthly 
occupancy

80%

Average
length of stay

13.2
days

(calculated monthly)

Increase in 
admissions

610
573 in 2017/18

Increased 
proportion
of deaths

69%
66% in 2017/18

Proportion
of discharges

31%

1

Quality Account
2018/19

A report detailing the quality of health care services
provided by St Ann’s Hospice, Greater Manchester

www.sah.org.uk
Registered charity number 258085

Our reach
St Ann’s is one of the oldest and largest hospices in the UK and our services span Greater Manchester and parts of 
Bolton, Wigan and East Cheshire.

We care for thousands of patients from across the area every year, and provide support for their loved ones too.

We have to raise around 
£20,000 a day to keep 

our services across Greater 
Manchester running.
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Medical workforce
A phased redevelopment of the medical 
workforce began with the appointment 
of several new Specialty Doctor roles in 
August 2018.  These roles are designed to provide 
greater continuity and stability in the workforce, 
providing much needed weekday cover for the zero 
days of the new Junior Doctor contract.  The Clinical 
Commissioning Consortium has kindly agreed to 
recurrently fund the development of these posts.

We have collaborated in the development of a new 
Consultant post in Stockport in October that will 
contribute to our on-call rota.

Consultants from St Ann’s have also been supporting 
a Macmillan 7-day working pilot, providing 
Consultant face to face support over weekends 
to the Salford Royal Foundation Trust and Salford 
community.  This started in October 2018 and will 
continue until March 2020.

St Ann’s continues its links with the Tiltas Trust and 
Lithuania.  October 2018 saw a visit from two pain 
specialists from Kaunas and on the 6th of March 
2019 we were honoured to welcome the Lithuanian 
Vice Minister of Health and Chancellor of the 
Ministry of Health to Heald Green.  They joined us 
accompanied by Professors in Nursing and Primary 
Care from the Lithuanian University of Health 
Sciences in Kaunas.  In March, one of our Consultants 
went to Klaipeda in Lithuania to deliver a lecture 
to a Palliative Care Conference on the differences in 
availability of opioid analgesia between our countries.

Community services
Both the Hospice @ Home service and 
the Community Specialist Palliative Care 
Team (CSPCT) have had a busy year. There has been 
an increase in the total number of referrals to the 
community teams.

The Hospice @ Home service in Trafford is working 
closely with the CCG to develop criteria to enable 
people to access personal health budgets which will 
assist in achieving personalised care, and support and 
enable people to be cared for in the place they call 
home or place of their choice.

The Community Specialist Palliative Care Team has 
been a key player in the Macmillan 7-day specialist 
palliative care programme to enhance the hospital 
and community provision. This has been a fantastic 
opportunity to develop, empower and progress 
the service and the workforce to deliver access and 
provide a 7-day service including the nursing and 
medical workforce.

Practice Development 
Centre
The Practice Development Centre 
(PDC) continues to provide bespoke training and 
development opportunities for both internal and 
external staff. During this period the PDC introduced 
Moodle – a virtual learning platform which enables 
all learning and developments material to be kept 
in one place and can be accessed remotely by staff. 
It also includes training videos for bladder scanning 

    Referrals Deaths Discharges

Hospice  
@ Home 
Trafford

110 43 38

Hospice 
@ Home 
Salford

290 135 74

Hospice @ 
Home Total

400 178 112

Community 
Specialist 
Palliative 
Care Team

918 301 258

TOTAL 1318 479 370

and enteral feeding as well as course material for all 
training sessions we deliver internally and externally. 
As in previous years we have offered a rolling 
programme of clinical updates either delivered by our 
own team or external subject experts.

There has also been a continuation of the exchange 
programme with Manchester University NHS 
Foundation Trust (MFT) and three nurses have 
benefitted from this programme to enhance their 
skills in other clinical specialities.

We have supported over 100 learners including 
nurses, medical staff, physiotherapists and 
counsellors. We were also awarded ‘outstanding’ in 
the educational audits regarding nursing students 
and the support we offer to them.

We have continued to offer bespoke training to care 
homes including syringe driver training and advance 
care planning. We are also one of four hubs across 
Greater Manchester who were awarded funding 
to deliver a ‘train the trainer’ package relating to 
communication skills and advance care planning.

Clinical Audit and Quality
We hold quarterly meetings where a 
rolling programme for clinical audit 
is agreed and reviewed. This includes 
clinical and medical staff from all services and 
departments. St Ann’s also participates in, and 
contributes to, the North West Regional Audit Group 
(NWAG) which is led by one of our consultants.

Patient Experience and 
User Involvement
We are always seeking innovative ways to 
gather feedback from our patients and 
their families. The hospice continues to report on the 
Friends and Family Test which yields positive results. 
Of the 660 completed surveys there were 634 who 
were ‘extremely likely’ to recommend St Ann’s to 
their friends or families if they needed similar services, 
with the remaining 24 stating ‘likely’, and only 2 
stating ‘neither likely nor unlikely’.

We conduct real time surveys across our inpatients 
and day therapy services and also conduct senior 
leadership walkabouts which include the Heads of 
Clinical Services, Director of Clinical Services and a 
Trustee. These provide great feedback but also inform 
us of any improvement which will enhance the care 
we provide.

Incident Reporting and
Near Misses
The hospice has a learning culture 
embedded in departments and encourages 
staff and volunteers to report and engage in the 
incident reporting system in order for us to learn, 
improve and prevent further incidents. Depending 
on the nature of the incident they are discussed 
appropriately at the relevant committee to share 
learning across the organisation.
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Organisational Development and
Support Services
Organisational Development

Succession Plans
A succession planning model has 
been introduced across the hospice 
to identify and develop potential future leaders and 
individuals to fill business-critical posts in the event 
of a vacancy or long-term absence.  Training and 
development activities to support the succession 
plans are tailored around individual needs and 
include the hospice’s leadership programme, 
attendance on external courses and job shadowing. 

Change Management
Supporting leaders with transforming 
services has been a priority this year.  
Leaders have attended workshops on 
business planning, change management and strategy 
and financial awareness.  

Staff Awards
The hospice held its first annual 
celebration event to celebrate staff and 
volunteers. The event included awards 
in the following categories, as well as long service 
awards for employees and volunteers:

Collaborative

Innovative

Initiative 

Together

Team St Ann’s  

Volunteer Special Recognition Award 

Investors in
People (IIP)
In 2015 a new standard was launched for the Investor 
in People (IIP) accreditation.  The hospice has been 
working towards reaccreditation under the new 
framework including a self-assessment of progress 

against each of the IIP Standards as well as identifying 
and prioritising further work.  We were pleased to be 
reaccredited in 2018 at Silver level.  The IIP assessor 
commented: “The leadership team has created 
a workforce who are engaged, empowered and 
focused on delivering their part toward the common 
ambition and this has produced high quality care in a 
period of change.  There is a strong culture of learning 
and development and having the patients and their 
families at the centre of all decisions.”

Senior Staff Pay
We aim to ensure that our employees’ salaries 
including our key management personnel reflect the 
level of responsibility, leadership expected of them, 
and that they are comparable with the salaries paid 
by other voluntary organisations. This is in line with 
the National Council for Voluntary Organisations’ 
executive pay guidance that ‘the overall goal of a 
charity’s pay policy should be to offer fair pay to 
attract and keep appropriately qualified staff to lead, 
manage, support and/or deliver the charity’s aims.’ By 
paying salaries that match similar roles at comparable 
organisations, we can attract and keep the highly 
skilled and committed staff the hospice requires. The 
salary structure and remuneration are considered in 
accordance with the Pay Policy and proposals are 
presented through the Finance Committee to the 
Board of Trustees.

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
St Ann’s Hospice is committed to equality, diversity 
and inclusion (EDI) in volunteering, employment 
and workplace practices and to promoting 
equality, tackling discrimination and fostering good 
relationships between a diverse range of people, 
including service users.  Our aim is to create an 
organisation that fosters good relationships between 
diverse groups, values diversity and promotes 
equality regardless of age, disability, gender, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief 
or sexual orientation.  We aim to tackle unlawful 
discrimination proactively through policies, practice 
and procedures. 

At St Ann’s Hospice recruitment, selection, 
induction training, other opportunities for training, 
remuneration, Performance and Development 
Reviews, promotion, disciplinary action, dismissal, 
organisational communication and working practices 
take account of equal opportunities.

Wherever possible the hospice will make reasonable 
adjustments to working practices and premises to 
support staff with a disability.

A variety of channels and forums have been 
developed to ensure effective communication and 
involvement including Staff Open Meetings, monthly 
Director Drop-Ins as well as a weekly Chief Executive 
Brief, staff intranet and departmental team meetings.  
In addition departmental representatives are invited 
to attend quarterly Involve meetings providing a 
channel for communication and consultation in 
relation to:

• developing our workplace culture and working 
practices

• ensuring safety, wellbeing and happiness at work

• safeguarding and promoting our values

• reward and recognition

• development and career progression

• sustaining our future

Support Services

Staffing
During 2018 a new Facilities 
Management model was introduced 
resulting in the creation of two new Facilities 
Manager posts to support the facilities across our 
sites. 

Improvements to 
Patient Areas 
and Facilities
Throughout the year it has been possible to make a 
number of improvements including:

• Purchasing a new ambulance for our Little 
Hulton site

• Soffits and rainwater goods have been replaced 
or renovated at Little Hulton

• Installation of a new Nurse Call system at Heald 
Green

• Resilience of our ICT infrastructure

• Purchase and installation of new beds at Heald 
Green and Little Hulton.
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Business Development

Fundraising

Fundraising Code of Practice
St Ann’s Hospice and St Ann’s Hospice Trading 
Company are a member of the Institute of 
Fundraising (IoF) and the Fundraising Regulator 
(FR). We continue to act ethically and responsibly, 
using best practice when communicating with our 
donors and supporters and adhere to The Code of 
Fundraising Practice and its associated Rulebooks 
for street and door fundraising that outline the 
standards expected of fundraising activity. In the 
Year 2018/19 we have received no requests to cease 
communication through the Fundraising Preference 
Service.

We display the trusted logo of the Fundraising 
Regulator on all our fundraising communications.

The hospice has a number of key fundraising income 
streams that enables it to continue its charitable 
activities, these are:

Individual Giving
General Donations and In Memory donations grew 
significantly this year demonstrating that our income 
is in the majority cause led. The new data protection 
rules introduced in May 2018 have changed the 
way that we communicate with people and the 
number of people we can reach, and in 2019/20 we 
are undertaking a project to increase the lifespan 
of donors who have agreed to future contact. 
Traditional campaigns (Light up a Life, Forget Me Not, 
Will Week) have stagnated or fallen and work needs 
to take place to understand if there is opportunity 
for growth or another offering needs to be made. An 
online offering for Light up a Life was established this 
year which attracted 100 new donors to the appeal, 
and further investigations and sharing of best practice 
with other hospices will continue.  

Community and Corporate
Community fundraising is now fully resourced and 
the result of the relationship building taking place in 

this department is that income is rising. Community 
third party supporters are now able to register 
and download a fundraising pack , enabling our 
fundraisers to better support them, and increasing 
the average income from their events. The team is 
also increasing presence in their communities, giving 
talks at schools and community organisations.

Corporate fundraising offers a huge potential for 
St Ann’s. We want to focus on this area as 
Manchester is leading the charge in de-centralising 
the UK market, boasting the fastest growing 
economy outside of the capital and gross value 
added (GVA) growth projections of 45% between 
2016 and 2036. Solid business development 
approaches and agreeing strategic and annual 
partnerships will deliver a step change in this area. 

Innovation and Digital
This year the hospice appointed an Innovation and 
Digital Fundraiser who has begun to look at
new and innovative ways of engaging with our 
supporters. We have already introduced contactless
donation points in the hospice and have invested in 
cashless donation boxes, both of which have proved 
to be a success. We introduced an online giving 
platform for our Light up a Life campaign this year 
and the introduction of Facebook Donate has been 
successful. We will look to build on this work over 

Our overall income from donations and legacies in 2018/19 was £4,773,658, 
compared with £4,676,495 in 2017/18.

the coming years, as the potential for growth in this 
sector is huge and will help us engage audiences we 
may not yet reach.

Legacies
Legacy income was stable in the 12 months to 31st 
March 2019 at £2,539,727 (£2,543,244 in
2017/18). Industry experts point to a long-term 
decline in legacy giving. Future income is likely to 
decline as the next generation of legators become 
more aware of the value of their estate and bequest 
fixed sums rather than a residue.  However, legacy 
income is vital to the hospice and therefore we 
cannot be complacent and should not ignore what 
the industry forecasts. We have taken steps to 
reinforce our income from legacies by appointing 
an Individual Giving and Legacy Fundraiser and 
will develop a strategy to increase the number of 
supporters who pledge to support us in their will, and 
thus increase the income received from this source. 
We are also taking steps to diversify our income 
streams so we are less reliant on legacies in the future.

Events
Our main events this year were the Manchester 
Midnight Walk and ObstaColour Run. We also had 
supporters and staff raising money for the hospice 
by participating in challenge events and sporting 
activities such as the Manchester 10km Run, the 
Abseil Challenge, and the London Marathon. 

In the next year our Events Team will be developing 
a strategy to build on the solid foundation and 
supporter base we already have. We will look at 
offering new event opportunities that are trending, 
such as climbing Mount Kilimanjaro, but we will 
also strengthen our numbers in key events that have 
growth potential. We are building relationships with 
Third Party Events providers in order to position 
ourselves as the charity of choice for future event 
partnerships. 

Finance
Following a number of staff retirements and natural 
leavers, a restructure of the Finance department took 
place this year to help address the changing needs 
of the sector. We identified that the hospice would 
benefit from two new Finance Officers, which we 
created by consolidating a number of vacant Finance 
Assistant posts.  The new structure has resulted in 
moderate cost-savings and a team structure well 
placed for the challenges ahead. 

The department is now fully staff and will be 
introducing new tools and innovations over the 
next year to drive efficiencies across the hospice.  
Electronic invoicing and a more sophisticated real-
time reporting system will be first on the agenda.  
We will also be reviewing and improving a number 
of outdated and inefficient processes that we will 
identify by working collaboratively with other 
departments.
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A range of income generating activities are 
conducted through a trading subsidiary, St Ann’s 
Hospice Trading Company Limited (“Trading 
Company”).

Total turnover for the Trading Company up to the 
31st March 2019 was £2,299,876, a 3.9% increase on 
2017/18.  Operating profit in the year is £512,881, a 
3.5% increase on 2017/18.  The increase in profit this 
year is mainly due to reduced canvassing costs in the 
lottery compared to 2017/18.

Shops
Despite challenging market conditions on the high 
street and sluggish growth in consumer spending, 
this year has shown improved sales figures with an 
increase on the previous year (201718) of 7.2%. 

We took the difficult decision to close one of our 
shops this year. We did however open a new furniture 
shop, our first shop in the metropolitan borough 
of Manchester and in a prime location on a busy 
commuter route in and out of Manchester City Centre.

Lottery
Lottery membership is currently 
22,500 with 22,037 active players.  
During the 2018/19 financial year,  
membership and active players fell 
by  2.5%. We are now working with SEC Fundraising 
Ltd as our canvassing company.  SEC have recruited 
an average of 36 new members each week since 
our recruitment campaign with them began in 
November 2018.

We continue to receive new lottery members via 
the lottery website at an average of 3 new plays each 
week and a total of 149 in the 2018/19 financial year.  
We have been working with our communications 

team to improve online signups and we plan to 
increase spend on Facebook advertising from the 
reduced expenditure on canvassing costs.

New income streams
This year we established a new house clearance 
service which has been very successful and has lots 
of potential for future growth.  Income is not only 
received from the clearance of the house, but resalable 
furniture items removed in the process are sent to our 
two furniture shops as much-needed stock.

We have plans over the next year to ramp up our 
online offering by introducing our own online shop 
and investing in resources to grow our Amazon and 
eBay stores. We have only scratched the surface with 
our online presence and therefore need to double 
our efforts to take full advantage of this sector.

Turnover to 31st March 2019

£2,299,876
a 3.9% increase on 2017/18

Operating profit to 31st March 2019

£512,881
a 3.5% increase on 2017/18

          22,500
Lottery

Members

Trading Company Communications
Our ambitious plans for innovation and development 
of our services have been supported by robust 
strategic communications activity again this year.

Awareness of the hospice’s purpose, services and 
fundraising remains extremely high, and our on and 
offline communities still continue to react positively 
with increased responses to calls to action.

This year we have:

• Generated 1,131 pieces of press coverage 
reaching 67,349,294 people

• Our Facebook and Twitter posts reached 
2,132,089 people

• Paid and organic social activity has increased, 
with a diverse range of blogs, infographics, 
news stories, images and videos all helping drive 
engagement

• At the end of March, social media followers 
across Twitter, Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn and 
YouTube totalled 24,214 people

• Average number of visitors to the hospice 
website in 2018/19 was 8,589 a month

• Communications activity has continued to dispel 
myths around hospice care and our purpose

• Our internal communications work remains 
important to ensure staff and volunteers remain 
informed, updated and engaged. The Staff Hub 
intranet site also continues to play an important 
part in supporting this work.

24,214 1131
pieces of press coverage

8,589 website visitors a month
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Plans for the future – our priorities
for 2019-2020
Our Five Year Strategy 2017-2022 outlines what we hope to achieve as an organisation 
over a five year period. As you’d expect, at the heart of that strategy are our patients 
and their families. Everything we do at St Ann’s is aimed at ensuring they have the best 
possible levels of care.
Our priorities for the coming year define and determine our areas of focus so that we can maximise our impact 
and ensure we remain on track to deliver what we set out to in 2017. The priorities below are not a comprehensive 
list of everything we will do this year, but set out where we will focus our efforts whilst retaining the flexibility to 
address new priorities and respond to emerging issues.

Develop our clinical and medical ambitions to further 
enhance our patient services.

Strengthen our staff recruitment, development 
and retention.

Advance our engagement with ‘hard to reach’ 
communities.

Establish our grateful patient philanthropy 
programme.

Accelerate our ambitious estate development programme.
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Develop 
our clinical 
and medical 
ambitions to 
further enhance the 
patient services 
• Strategic collaboration with 

external colleagues with 
regard to Macmillan projects 
in Salford and Manchester 
allows St Ann’s to be at 
the forefront of innovative 
solutions to care delivery 
across communities.

• We’ll recruit to two new 
Advanced Nurse Practitioner 
posts for the inpatient unit, 
as part of our plans to deliver 
a 7-day working model.

• We will also instigate a 
strategic review on the 
nursing workforce to prepare 
ourselves for the roll out of 
Nurse Associate positions.

• The OACC (Outcomes 
Assessment and Complexity 
Collaborative) measures will 
continue to be embedded 
within our medical activity.

Strengthen 
our staff 
recruitment, 
development 
and retention
• Our employees are our 

number one asset, so making 
sure we’re attracting and 
keeping the best talent is 
crucial to achieving our 
vision of being a world-class 
provider of palliative and end 
of life care.

• We need to maximise any 
opportunity to hire new 

talent, and focus on retaining 
our existing staff.

• We’ll recruit people with the 
right values and behaviours, 
and will take advantage 
of our local devolved 
healthcare ecosystem to help 
us find the best staff.

• Developing innovative 
solutions to recruitment 
will be a priority, making 
use of social media and 
spreading the word through 
our internal and external 
networks.

• We will build on our 
investment in flexible staff 
training opportunities, and 
consolidate engagement 
opportunities against our 
values and strategic aims.

• We’ll continue to review our 
pay structure to ensure we 
keep pace with the NHS and 
other equivalent institutions.

Advance our 
engagement 
with ‘hard 
to reach’ 
communities
• We’ll continue to develop 

nurse-led specialist palliative 
care clinics and work 
with communities who 
sometimes find it difficult 
to access palliative or end of 
life care (such as prisoners, 
people with learning 
disabilities, and lesbian, gay, 
bisexual, and transgender 
communities).

• We’ll continue to break 
down barriers with people 
in ethnic minority groups 
where issues may arise due 
to culturally appropriate 

health care practices, cultural 
or religious differences, or 
diverse health beliefs.

• Following a successful 
Big Lottery Fund bid, we 
are creating a bespoke 
programme for the benefit 
of homeless communities 
and to support homeless 
patients with complex 
needs.

Establish 
our grateful 
patient 
philanthropy 
programme
• Legacies and in-memoriam 

giving are a vital source of 
income to the hospice.

• We will encourage and 
empower everyone  
throughout the organisation 
to be part of a fundraising 
culture.

• We will be bold and not shy 
away from asking people 
to leave us financial gifts to 
support our work.

• A Grateful Patient 
Programme will be 
developed based on proven 
models, creating meaningful 
mutual benefits for both the 
hospice and the families of 
patients, beyond the time of 
treatment.

• We’ll develop and publish a 
legacy policy to enhance our 
monitoring of in-memoriam 
giving, whilst actively 
encouraging philanthropic 
activity.
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Accelerate 
our
ambitious 
estate 
development 
programme
• St Ann’s is 48 years old, but 

the building in Heald Green 
dates back to Victorian 
times.  

• It’s becoming increasingly 
difficult to manage, as well as 
being costly to maintain.

• We will accelerate work 
with respect to our 
redevelopment activities of 
the Heald Green estate.  

• Our vision is a facility that is 
fit for the future - a modern 
hospice with world-class 
facilities for patients, families 
and our community.

• We will also consider the 
hospice’s Little Hulton 
building, consulting staff, 
volunteers, and other 
stakeholders to create the 
opportunity for a redesign 
of this 40 years old building 
and allow us to adapt to 
the changing needs of local 
patients.

Our Ambitious Agenda: 
A new hospice in Heald Green
As one of the oldest hospices in the UK, we know just how important it is to adapt 
and continue to innovate to ensure our care remains fit for the future for our patients 
and their families.

Our Plan
Our hospice site in Heald Green 
is a Victorian building which is 
no longer fit for the future. We 
have adapted it over the years, 
developing new areas and spaces 
for our patient care, but it is 
no longer tenable to continue 
to spend funds fixing what is 
rapidly becoming an outdated 
facility.  In order to continue 
providing the world-class care 
that our patients and families 
know us for, we are about to 
embark on a capital campaign 
which will result in a brand new, 

purpose built hospice which is fit 
to provide care for many future 
generations of local people.

Fit For the Future
What will it be?

A new 27 bed state-of-the-art 
hospice, purpose-built and fully 
equipped. The new building will 
be efficient, and also provide 
ample space for patients, families, 
and staff. Our new hospice will 
be a centre of excellence and 
care, a hub of innovation, and 
an organisation of choice for 
patients, families and staff.

It will be a hospice fit for the 
future.

The new hospice at St Ann’s 
will be designed and equipped 
to ensure that the increasing 
demand and complexity of 
palliative care is met in a caring 
and efficient way. This will 
include:

• More single beds to provide 
the hospice with greater 
flexibility to respond to the 
increasing need for hospice 
care.

• Wider corridors for mobility, 
as the current provision 

Visible and inviting from the street
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is not fully suitable for 
wheelchairs and other 
mobility aids and staff.

• Vital extra breakout space 
for patients, families and 
carers to have private 
discussions, counselling, 
social care consultation, etc.

• Implementation of advanced 
technology to enable the 
best care, efficiency and 
comfort.

• Rooms to accommodate 
relatives staying overnight.

• Direct access to outside 
space promoting health and 
wellbeing.

• State of the art equipment 
and facilities to deliver care.

• An innovation/training 
hub to promote excellence 
and train future nurses, 
specialists, and other care 
staff.

What will it look like?

A modern hospice that retains 
its welcoming, friendly and 
comfortable environment. We 
want to create Manchester’s 
Hospice,  a pioneering age-
friendly community, which 
is inclusive and rooted in the 
region.  

Some plans include:

• A larger and reimagined Day 
Therapy area to meet the 
future needs of patients and 
families.

• Spaces throughout the 
building that encourage 
interaction, creativity, peace 
and connection between 
patients, families, clinicians 
and other service providers.

• Outdoor spaces accessible to 
all patients and visitors.

• Landscapes that promote 
activity with therapeutic 
benefits.

Crucially, we want to introduce 
the concept of a ‘Village Street’ 
inside the new hospice, offering 
a variety of activities for patients, 
and enabling us to welcome 
more visitors to our site.

Our vision is that St Ann’s 
becomes a community hub – a 
centre of connection for all ages.

How much will it cost and how 
long will it take?

The new building will be much 
more efficient than the current 
building, encouraging significant 
operational  savings. The 
proposed £21m project will be 
part funded, but there will be a 
significant fundraising campaign 
raising money for the project. 
We will be holding consultation 
with our friends, family and 
neighbours to ensure that all 
views on the new hospice are 
considered.

Peaceful gardens for all our patients and families to enjoy

St Ann’s Hospice will be 50 
years old in 2021, a major 
achievement, and we will be 
embarking on an exciting two 
year programme of events, 
celebration and fundraising 
activity around the ambitious 
project - ensuring that we 
continue to provide the best 
in hospice care for the next 50 
years and beyond.

Light and spacious to make everyone feel welcome
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Financial Review
The accounts for the year have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of 
Recommended Practice Accounting and Reporting by Charities (SORP 2015) and 
comply with all statutory requirements and the hospice’s governing document.  
The accounts consolidate the results of the hospice and its trading subsidiary.
The Trustees report a net increase to overall funds 
for the year of £0.2 million (2017/18: £0.2 million 
decrease) and an overall funds balance of £14.8 
million at 31 March 2019 (£14.6 million at 31 March 
2018). The financial position of the group is set out 
in the balance sheet on page 41. The Reserves Policy 
relating to the funds held by the hospice is described 
in the Reserves Policy below.  

Income and expenditure 

The Statement of Financial Activities is set out on 
page 44 of these financial statements.  From an 
operating point of view 2018/19 showed a deficit 
before investment (losses)/gains and pension liability 
movements of £28k  (2017/18: £0.1 million).

The hospice’s principal sources of income are 
donations, legacies, NHS income and trading profits.  
Total income in 2018/19 was £11.8 million (2017/18 
£11.3 million).

Income from donations is £2.2 million, a 4% increase 
compared to the previous year (2017/18: £2.1 
million).  

Legacy income has remained at £2.5 million this 
year, recognised as received or as due under FRS 102 
(2017/18: £2.5 million).

Funding from NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups 
amounted to £4.4 million, an increase of 9% due 
to income received relating to our participation in 
the Macmillan 7-day working pilot and additional 
funding received for medical staffing. (2017/18: £4.1 
million).

The turnover of the Trading Company has 
increased to £2.3 million compared to £2.1 million 
last year. Whilst there have been some additional 
cost pressures, overall profitability has increased. 
The amount gifted to the hospice is £0.5 million 
compared to £0.5 million in 2017/18.

Investment income and interest receivable in 2018/19 
was £0.2 million, showing similar levels to 2017/18.

The cost of Charitable Activities increased slightly 
by £0.4 million from £9.0 million to £9.4 million. The 
increase is largely due to salaries. We continue to 
review our cost base to ensure that we are providing 
our services as efficiently as possible.

The actuarial gain in the pension fund is £0.1 million 
in the Statement of Financial Activities in 2017/18. A 
payment of £2 million was made in the year against 
the pension liability which now shows as a liability of 
£3.2 million.  The pension liability and its impact on 
the hospice’s financial position is monitored closely 
by the Trustees of the St Ann’s Pension Scheme.  The 
major financial assumptions used to calculate the 
Pension Scheme Liability are shown in Note 22 to the 
Accounts.

 

Investment Performance, Policy and 
Management

At 31 March 2019 the value of the investment 
portfolio was £6.6 million (see note 14), an increase of 
£0.3 million compared to 31 March 2018. During the 
year income earned on the portfolio was reinvested. 
On a total return basis the portfolio experienced 
a decrease of -3.06% compared to the benchmark 
(WMA Income index) which experienced a decrease 
of -3.46%. The decrease in the value of the hospice 
portfolio reflects global market conditions and it 
has outperformed the benchmark against which its 
performance is measured.

The investment managers have been given delegated 
responsibility to manage the investment portfolio, 
subject to agreed asset allocations. Funds are invested 
in a portfolio of UK and overseas equities, fixed 
interest investments, and alternative investments 
such as property and cash. The investment 
performance is reviewed at least bi-annually by the 
Finance Committee.

The investment policy is to seek the best financial 
return within an acceptable level of risk and the 

investment objectives are a balance between income 
and capital growth.

Investments made on behalf of the hospice are 
restricted in that no investments may be made 
directly in companies manufacturing tobacco related 
products.

Policy on Reserves 

A Statement of Unrestricted Funds is shown in Note 
20 to the Accounts.

The Charities SORP defines reserves as that part 
of a charity’s funds that is freely available to spend. 
The Trustees have agreed that these free reserves 
should not normally exceed one year’s running costs. 
The free reserves at 31 March 2019 are £5.6 million 
(2017/18: £5.0 million) which represents between 
five and six months of normal running costs for the 
hospice (2017/18: between five and six months).

The Charities SORP specifically allows for funds 
held as “tangible fixed assets for charity use” to be 
excluded from free reserves. The Trustees therefore 
set aside a designated reserve of £4.5 million, equal to 
the net book value of tangible fixed assets (2017/18: 
£4.6 million). 

In addition the Trustees have designated a reserve of 
£4.5 million to be held for Property Refurbishment 
and Development (2017/18: £4.5 million). This 
reserve relates mainly to the Heald Green site and 
reflects the requirement to set aside funds towards 
future refurbishment and/or rebuilding costs that 
are considered necessary to meet the increasingly 
complex clinical and care requirements of patients. 
St Ann’s Hospice is currently evaluating the options 
for the accommodation requirements to meet future 
service provision needs.

Strategic Risks

St Ann’s Hospice recognises the risks associated 
with voluntary income from fundraising, particularly 
legacies, which is an income stream that fluctuates 
unpredictably. Changes to legislation, downturns 
in the economy and activity from other charitable 
organisations, whether within or outside the hospice 
sector may all impact on fundraising revenue.

In mitigation of the potential risks, the Trustees 
regularly review external influences and legislative 
implications. We take a proactive approach in 
encouraging supporters to consider legacies 
and a strategic approach to securing Trusts and 
grant awards for both restricted and unrestricted 
monies. The St Ann’s Trading Company Board and 
management team monitor performance of the retail 
outlets and lottery against budget, forecasts and 
trends. 

In April 2018 St Ann’s Hospice entered year two of
a two year contract with the Clinical Commission
Group consortium. We welcome the 2.5% uplift in
the contract value per annum although the length of
the contract has reduced from three to two years in
line with CCG policy. 

St Ann’s Hospice continues to work collaboratively 
with Greater Manchester hospices to measure the 
impact of the devolved Greater Manchester Health 
and Social Care Partnership, which is considering 
options in the commissioning structure. The hospice 
team has regular, strategic engagement with the 
CCGs regarding funding that may be allocated 
according to levels of clinical activity and service 
delivery.

The hospice has identified a number of projects 
to assist with achieving its business objectives and 
ensuring and protecting financial viability. Some 
projects may result in changes for the existing 
workforce and will require appropriate levels of 
effective leadership in order to achieve success.

The hospice manages this risk by utilising a range 
of methods to communicate and update staff, 
including HR and executive director surgeries and 
open meetings. The ‘managing change’ workshop 
continues to link with INSPIRE and ASPIRE 
development programmes.
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Trustees Responsibility Statement
The trustees (who are also directors of St Ann’s Hospice for the purposes of company 
law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Annual Report and the financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including FRS 
102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare 
financial statements for each financial year which 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the charitable company and the group, and of the 
incoming resources and application of resources, 
including the income and expenditure, of the 
charitable company and the group, for that period. In 
preparing these financial statements, the trustees are 
required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply 
them consistently;

• observe the methods and principles in the 
Charities SORP;

• make judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent;

• state whether applicable UK Accounting 
Standards have been followed, [subject to any 
material departures disclosed and explained in 
the financial statements]; and

• prepare the financial statements on the going 
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 
presume that the charitable company will 
continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
charitable company and enable them to ensure that 
the financial statements comply with the Companies 
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding 
the assets of the charitable company and hence 
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In so far as the trustees are aware:

• there is no relevant audit information of which 
the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

• the trustees have taken all steps that they ought 
to have taken to make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that 
the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and 
integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the charitable company’s website. 
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements 
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Trustees report, including the Strategic Report, 
was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf

Professor Jacqueline Oldham BSc (Hons) RGN PhD

Chair of St Ann’s Hospice

Date: 16 September 2019
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ST ANN'S HOSPICE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

(including consolidated income and expenditure account)

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Note

Unrestricted Restricted Total funds Total funds

funds funds 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

INCOME FROM:

Voluntary income

Donations and legacies 3 4,773,658 - 4,773,658 4,676,495

Charitable activities 4 3,323,013 1,176,782 4,499,795 4,132,775

Other trading activities 5 2,362,212 - 2,362,212 2,254,880

Investments 6 196,741 1,556 198,297 197,786

TOTAL INCOME 10,655,624 1,178,338 11,833,962 11,261,936

EXPENDITURE ON:

Raising funds 7 2,446,288 - 2,446,288 2,362,129

Charitable activities 8 8,385,592 1,030,424 9,416,016 9,036,092

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 10,831,880 1,030,424 11,862,304 11,398,221

Net (Expenditure)/Income before investment gains/(losses) (176,256) 147,914 (28,342) (136,285)

Net Gains/(Losses) on Investments 14 146,648 - 146,648 (5,240)

Net income/(expenditure) before tax 10 (29,608) 147,914 118,306 (141,525)

Taxation 12 (781) - (781) (136)

Net Income/(expenditure) for the year (30,389) 147,914 117,525 (141,661)

Transfer Between Funds 20 16,846 (16,846) - -

Other Recognised Gains/(Losses):

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Schemes 22 123,000 - 123,000 (68,000)

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS 109,457 131,068 240,525 (209,661)

FUND BALANCES BROUGHT FORWARD AT

1st April 14,486,246 92,911 14,579,157 14,788,818

FUND BALANCES CARRIED FORWARD AT

31st March 20,21 14,595,703 223,979 14,819,682 14,579,157

There were no other recognised gains or losses other than those listed above and the net income for the year. All 

income and expenditure derives from continuing activities.

The (deficit)/surplus of the parent charity for the year for Companies Act purposes is £240,525 (2018: (£209,661)). 

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate Statement of Financial Activities is presented

 in respect of the parent charity.

See note 19 for the comparative consolidated statement of financial activities analysed by funds.

Consolidated statement of financial activities
(including consolidated income and expenditure account)
For the year ended 31 March 2019

There were no other recognised gains or losses other than those listed above and the net income for the year. All
income and expenditure derives from continuing activities.

The (deficit)/surplus of the parent charity for the year for Companies Act purposes is £240,525 (2018: (£209,661)).

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate Statement of Financial Activities is presented
in respect of the parent charity.

See note 19 for the comparative consolidated statement of financial activities analysed by funds.

ST ANN'S HOSPICE

BALANCE SHEET

31 March 2019

Group Charity

Note 2019 2018 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets for use by the charity 13 4,492,842 4,647,512 4,450,705 4,621,116

Investments 14 6,589,349 6,322,895 6,589,351 6,322,897

11,082,191 10,970,407 11,040,056 10,944,013

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks 15 55,873 61,625 3,265 3,265

Debtors 16 1,876,656 1,689,427 1,946,926 1,704,278

Short-term cash investments

Cash at bank and in hand 17 6,027,486 8,233,118 5,620,008 7,824,482

7,960,015 9,984,170 7,570,199 9,532,025

CREDITORS: amounts falling due

  within one year 18 (1,060,524) (1,206,420) (628,573) (727,881)

NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,899,491 8,777,750 6,941,626 8,804,144

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING

  PENSION LIABILITY 17,981,682 19,748,157 17,981,682 19,748,157

PENSION LIABILITY 22 (3,162,000) (5,169,000) (3,162,000) (5,169,000)

NET ASSETS INCLUDING

  PENSION LIABILITY 14,819,682 14,579,157 14,819,682 14,579,157

FUNDS

Unrestricted Funds 14,595,703 14,486,246 14,595,703 14,486,246

Restricted funds 223,979 92,911 223,979 92,911

TOTAL FUNDS 20, 21 14,819,682 14,579,157 14,819,682 14,579,157

These financial statements of St Ann's Hospice,(registered number 947220), were appoved by the Directors

and authorised for issue on xx xxxxxxxx 2019. They were signed on its behalf by:

FirstName_Surname

Honorary Treasurer

BALANCE SHEET
31 March 2019

These financial statements of St Ann’s Hospice, (registered number 947220), were appoved by the Directors and authorised for issue 
on 16 September 2019. They were signed on its behalf by:

Darren Holt
Honorary Treasurer



TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS     47

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS 2018-19

46      TRUSTEES’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ST ANN’S HOSPICE

ST ANN'S HOSPICE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2019 Group Group

2019 2018

£ £

Net cash flow from operating activities (2,082,204) 802,243

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received 41,587 40,206

Investment movement (119,806) (125,972)

Investment income received 156,710 157,580

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (201,919) (170,104)

Net cash flows from investing activities (123,428) (98,290)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,205,632) 703,953

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year 8,233,118 7,529,165

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,027,486 8,233,118

Reconciliation of net income and net cashflow Group Group

from operating activities 2019 2018

£ £

Net income before investment (losses)/gains (28,342) (136,285)

Adjustments for:

Investment income (156,710) (157,580)

Interest Receivable (41,587) (40,206)

Depreciation 356,589 368,264

Loss/(Profit) on sale of tangible fixed assets - -

129,950 34,193

(Increase)/decrease in stock 5,752 (859)

(Increase)/Decrease in debtors (187,229) 469,142

Increase/(decrease) in creditors (146,677) 149,767

Adjustment for pension funding (1,884,000) 150,000

(2,082,204) 802,243

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 March 2019 Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company and charitable status

St. Ann’s Hospice, a public benefit entity, is incorporated in England and Wales as a company limited by guarantee not having a share 
capital. There are currently 11 Trustees who are also the members of the company. Each member has undertaken to contribute to the 
assets in the event of winding up a sum not exceeding £1. The charity is a registered charity.  The registered office is given on page 77. 

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of investments which have been included 
at market value, and in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice “Accounting and Reporting by Charities (SORP 2015)” 
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland (FRS 102), effective 1 January 2015; and the Companies Act 2006.   

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Preparation of financial statements - going concern basis

The charity and group’s activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out 
in the Trustees Report which also describes the financial position of the group including its cash, investments and reserves policies. The 
group forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in donations, legacies, fundraising activities and other 
income, show that the group should be able to operate with the current level of reserves it has.  After making enquiries, the Trustees have 
a reasonable expectation that the charity and the group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the annual report and financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Group financial statements have been prepared in respect of the charity and its wholly owned subsidiary undertaking St. Ann’s Hospice 
Trading Company Limited. These financial statements have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the results of the subsidiary 
undertaking are disclosed in note 14.

Cash flow statement

In accordance with FRS 102 the group is exempt from the requirement to present its parent charity cash flow statement.

Income

Income is recognised when the group and charity has entitlement to the funds, any performance conditions attached to the item(s) of 
income have been met, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Donations and fundraising activities

Donations and all other receipts from fundraising are reported gross and the related fundraising costs are reported in the costs of raising 
funds. Cash collections to which the charity is entitled but which it has not received by the year end are included in income in the 
statement of financial activities and shown as debtors in the balance sheet.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to make a payment to a third party, it is probable that settlement 
will be required and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The charity’s operating costs include staff costs, premises costs, governance costs and other related costs. Such support costs are allocated 
between cost of raising funds and charitable expenditure. Staff costs are allocated according to the costs of staff working directly in the 
relevant activity and property costs are allocated according to the space used by each activity. Where costs are not directly attributable to 
any activity, they have been apportioned using an appropriate basis. Governance costs represent expenditure incurred in the management 
of the charity’s assets, organisational administration, and compliance with constitutional and statutory requirements

Charitable expenditure

Costs of activities in furtherance of the charity’s objects include all expenditure directly related to the objects of the charity.

Cost of raising funds

Cost of raising funds includes the following:

• Fundraising and publicity
 This represents expenditure in relation to staff members who are directly engaged in fundraising, and related costs of the fundraising 

activity.

• Lottery and raffle prizes and organisation costs
 This represents expenditure by the trading company in relation to costs directly involved in organising the lottery and raffle, including 

the purchase of prizes and prize money.

• Other costs associated with trading activities
 This represents other costs incurred by the trading company for fundraising activities.

Fund accounting

The charity maintains various types of funds as follows.

Restricted funds

Restricted funds are funds subject to specific restrictions imposed by the funding authorities and donors. These funds are not available for 
the Trustees to apply at their discretion. The purpose and use of the restricted funds is set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Unrestricted funds

• General unrestricted funds
 General unrestricted funds represent funds which are expendable at the discretion of the Trustees in furtherance of the objects of the 

charity. Such funds may be held in order to finance both working capital and capital investment.

• Designated funds
 Designated funds are amounts which have been put aside at the discretion of the Trustees.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income (continued)

Legacies

Legacies are accounted for when conditions for receipt have been met. Material legacies receivable at the year-end are included at their 
probate value.

Grants receivable

Income from grants is included in income when receivable, except as follows:

• When donors specify that grants given to the charity must be used in future accounting periods, the income is deferred until those 
periods.

• When donors impose conditions which have to be fulfilled before the charity becomes entitled to use such income, the income is 
deferred and not included in income until pre-conditions for use have been met.

• When donors specify that grants, including capital grants are particular restricted purposes, which do not amount to pre-conditions 
regarding entitlement, this income is included in income of restricted funds when receivable.

Trading activities

Income from trading activities includes fundraising revenue as well as sales recognised in the group’s trading subsidiary. The trading 
subsidiary’s turnover represents the net amount receivable from all activities, excluding value added tax. Turnover from the sale of goods 
is recognised upon exchange of goods for payment. Income from lottery ticket sales comprises income in relation to draws held in the 
period and is recognised upon completion of the draw. Receipts in advance of future draws are included in deferred income until the date 
of the draw.

Investment income

Investment income is accounted for when receivable.

Donated goods and services

Donated professional services and donated facilities are recognised as income when the charity has control over the item, any conditions 
associated with the donated item have been met, the receipt of economic benefit from the use by the charity of the item is probable and 
that economic benefit can be measured reliably. In accordance with the SORP 2015, general volunteer time is not recognised - refer to the 
Trustees’ annual report for more information about their contribution.

On receipt, donated professional services and donated facilities are recognised on the basis of the value of the gift to the charity which is 
the amount the charity would have been willing to pay to obtain services or facilities of equivalent economic benefit on the open market; 
a corresponding amount is then recognised in expenditure in the period of receipt.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to sell, which is equivalent to the net realisable value. Cost is 
calculated using the FIFO (first-in, first-out) method. Provision is made for obsolete, slowmoving or defective items where appropriate. 
Items donated for resale are not included in the financial statements until they are sold.

Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments are not made on such a basis. 
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are similarly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to the Statement of Financial Activities are the costs arising from employee services 
rendered during the period and the cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of 
staff costs.

The net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability is charged to the Statement of Financial Activities and included within support 
costs. Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on scheme assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
on the net defined benefit liability) is recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the group, in separate trustee 
administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected 
unit credit method. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date.

For defined contribution schemes the amount charged to the Statement of Financial Activities in respect of pension costs and other 
retirement benefits is the contributions payable in the year. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions 
actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the benefit obligation at the reporting date.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All 
financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs).

The charity and group only have financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial instruments. With the 
exception of fixed asset investments, basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at 
their settlement value.

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount due after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the 
amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three months or less from the 
date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

Creditors and provisions are recognised where the charity has a present obligation resulting from a past event that will probably result in 
the transfer of funds to a third party and the amount due to settle the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably. Creditors and 
provisions are normally recognised at their settlement amount after allowing for any trade discounts due.

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

The parent company is a registered charity and has no liability to corporation tax on its charitable activities under the Corporation Tax 
Act 2010 (chapters 2 and 3 of part ii, section 466 onwards) or Section 256 of the Taxation for Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent 
surpluses are applied to its charitable purposes.

Current tax for the subsidiary company, comprising UK corporation tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using 
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where 
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at 
the balance sheet date. Timing differences are differences between the trading company’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the 
financial statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are 
recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date that are 
expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred tax is measured on a nondiscounted basis.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation is provided on all tangible 
fixed assets, other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a 
straight line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold buildings    50 years
Leasehold improvements   period of the lease
Leasehold buildings   period of the lease
Fixtures, furniture and equipment  4 years
Motor vehicles    4 years

Investments

Investments are included in the financial statements at market value. The Statement of Financial Activities includes the net gains and 
losses arising on revaluations and disposals throughout the year.

Current investments represent monies invested in short-term liquid money market instruments.

The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price for an identical asset in an active market. When quoted prices are unavailable, the price 
of a recent transaction for an identical asset provides evidence of fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic 
circumstances or a significant lapse of time since the transaction took place. If the market is not active and recent transactions of an 
identical asset on their own are not a good estimate of fair value, the fair value is estimated by using a valuation technique.

In the parent charity balance sheet, investments in subsidiary undertakings are measured at cost less impairment.
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ST ANN'S HOSPICEST ANN'S HOSPICEST ANN'S HOSPICEST ANN'S HOSPICE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2019For the year ended 31 March 2019For the year ended 31 March 2019For the year ended 31 March 2019

3.3.3.3. ANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND LEGACIESANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND LEGACIESANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND LEGACIESANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND LEGACIES

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

££££ ££££

Donations 2,233,931 2,133,251

Legacies 2,539,727 2,543,244

4,773,658 4,676,495

4.4.4.4. ANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES ANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES ANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES ANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES 

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

££££ ££££

NHS Contracts 4,499,795 4,127,775

Grants - 5,000

4,499,795 4,132,775

5.5.5.5. ANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIESANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIESANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIESANALYSIS OF INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

££££ ££££

Fundraising activities 62,336 69,314

Lottery and raffle income from trading subsidiary 1,237,170 1,261,090

Other income from trading subsidiary 1,062,706 924,476

2,362,212 2,254,880

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Trustees are required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 

The Trustees do not consider there are any critical judgements or sources of estimation uncertainty requiring disclosure.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. INVESTMENT INCOME

2019 2018

£ £

UK listed investments 156,710 157,580

Bank Interest 41,587 40,206

198,297 197,786

7. ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE ON RAISING FUNDS

2019 2018

Total Total

£ £

Employee costs 419,234 408,012

Office and sundry costs 83,846 93,109

Direct costs 123,897 143,655

Share of support costs 70,316 65,442

Lottery and raffle prizes and organisation costs 370,214 425,517

Other costs associated with trading activity 1,378,781 1,226,394

2,446,288 2,362,129

8. ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE ON CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Activities Support 2019

undertaken costs

directly Total

2019 £ £ £

Provision of Hospice services:

In-patient Care 6,508,580 152,746 6,661,326

Day Therapy 940,160 22,072 962,232
Community Specialist 

Palliative Care Team
583,776 15,053 598,829

Hospice at Home 274,346 6,816 281,162

Education 340,735 -                      340,735

Out-patients 565,651 6,081 571,732

9,213,248 202,768 9,416,016

Activities Support 2018

undertaken costs

directly Total

2018 £ £ £

Provision of Hospice services:

In-patient Care 6,269,213 128,106 6,397,319

Day Therapy 902,537 18,566 921,103

Community Specialist 

Palliative Care Team 483,780
10,701 494,481

Hospice at Home 260,302 5,756 266,058

Education 336,810 -                      336,810

Out-patients 615,179 5,142 620,321

8,867,821 168,271 9,036,092

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9.9.9.9. ANALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTSANALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTSANALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTSANALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTS

In-patientIn-patientIn-patientIn-patient DayDayDayDay

Com-Com-Com-Com-

munitymunitymunitymunity

Hospice Hospice Hospice Hospice 

atatatat Out-Out-Out-Out-

Charitable Charitable Charitable Charitable 

ActivitiesActivitiesActivitiesActivities

Raising Raising Raising Raising 

fundsfundsfundsfunds 2019201920192019

carecarecarecare therapytherapytherapytherapy SPCTSPCTSPCTSPCT HomeHomeHomeHome patientspatientspatientspatients TotalTotalTotalTotal TotalTotalTotalTotal TotalTotalTotalTotal

££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££

2019201920192019

Governance 81,115 11,795 8,531 3,863 3,239 108,543 37,641 146,184

Finance 28,667 4,113 2,610 1,182 1,137 37,709 13,077 50,786

Information Technology 18,166 2,606 1,654 749 721 23,896 8,287 32,183

Human Resources 18,882 2,709 1,719 778 749 24,837 8,613 33,450

Communications 5,916 849 539 244 235 7,783 2,699 10,482

152,746 22,072 15,053 6,816 6,081 202,768 70,317 273,085

In-patientIn-patientIn-patientIn-patient DayDayDayDay

Com-Com-Com-Com-

munitymunitymunitymunity

Hospice Hospice Hospice Hospice 

atatatat Out-Out-Out-Out-

Charitable Charitable Charitable Charitable 

ActivitiesActivitiesActivitiesActivities

Raising Raising Raising Raising 

fundsfundsfundsfunds 2018201820182018

carecarecarecare therapytherapytherapytherapy SPCTSPCTSPCTSPCT HomeHomeHomeHome patientspatientspatientspatients TotalTotalTotalTotal TotalTotalTotalTotal TotalTotalTotalTotal

££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££

2018201820182018

Governance 60,981 8,901 5,511 2,965 2,458 80,816 31,430 112,246

Finance 27,265 3,926 2,108 1,134 1,090 35,523 13,815 49,338

Information Technology 16,119 2,321 1,246 670 644 21,000 8,167 29,167

Human Resources 16,447 2,368 1,272 684 658 21,429 8,334 29,763

Communications 7,294 1,050 564 303 292 9,503 3,696 13,199

128,106 18,566 10,701 5,756 5,142 168,271 65,442 233,713

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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10. NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR

2019 2018

Net income is stated after charging: £ £

Depreciation of owned asset 249,018 270,774

Depreciation of leased assets 97,539 97,490

Depreciation of motor vehicles 10,032 -              

Rentals under operating leases

Land and buildings 225,465 224,532

Other 18,345 15,509

Auditor's remuneration

12,730 12,360

Fees payable to the charity's auditor for other services to the group 7,148 6,986

The audit of the charity's subsidiary 5,450 5,250

Fees payable to the charity's auditor for the audit of the charity's annual  

financial statements*

The amount disclosed is the fair value of the services provided, £12,730 (2018: £12,360) was recognised in the year as a gift-

in-kind for the audit of the charity.

* Note: Deloitte LLP provide the audit of the statutory accounts at a discounted rate as a means to support the charity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11. ANALYSIS OF STAFF COSTS, TRUSTEE REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES AND THE 

COST OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The average monthly number of employees was: 2019 2018 2019 2018

No. No. No. No.

Charitable activity 205 219 205 219

Raising funds 19 21 17 19

Trading activities 32 22 - -

Support 53 51 53 51

309 313 275 289

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

2019 2018 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

     Wages and salaries 6,864,408 6,633,753 6,213,711 5,996,609

     Social security costs 569,730 547,031 522,844 506,001

     Pension costs 501,492 480,912 480,400 465,313

7,935,630 7,661,696 7,216,955 6,967,923

Group Charity

Group Charity

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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11. ANALYSIS OF STAFF COSTS, TRUSTEE REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES AND THE 

COST OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (continued)

2019 2018

No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 0 2

£70,001 - £80,000 1 2

£80,001 - £90,000 2 1

£100,001 - £110,000 1 0

Key Management Personnel

The key management personnel of the parent charity and group are the same and are listed on page 77.

The total remuneration (including pension contributions and employer's national insurance costs) 

of the key management personnel of the charity and group for the year totalled £493,109 (2018: £424,108). 

Trustees remuneration

No Trustees received any remuneration during the current or prior year. No travel and subsistence expenses were 

paid during the year (2018: £Nil)

12. TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES OF TRADING SUBSIDIARY

The hospice is not liable to corporation tax. The tax charge, all of which arises in the trading subsidiary comprises:

2019 2018

£ £

Current tax on profit on ordinary activities

UK corporation tax 62,596           61,815           

Adjustments in respect of prior year (61,815) (61,679)

Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 781 136

The standard rate of tax for the year, based on the UK standard rate of corporation tax is 19%. The actual

tax charge for the year differs from the standard rate for the following reasons:

2019 2018

£ £

Profit on ordinary activities 512,881 495,662

Tax on profit on ordinary activities at the standard rate 97,448 94,176

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (97,299) 1,454

Gift aid donations at 20% 2,000 (94,150)

Capital allowances (in excess of)/less than depreciation (1,368) 1,740

Other timing differences 61,815 58,595

Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods (61,815) (61,679)

Total tax (credit)/charge for the year 781 136

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13131313 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS FOR USE BY THE CHARITYTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS FOR USE BY THE CHARITYTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS FOR USE BY THE CHARITYTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS FOR USE BY THE CHARITY

FreeholdFreeholdFreeholdFreehold ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure Fixtures,Fixtures,Fixtures,Fixtures,

land andland andland andland and on leaseholdon leaseholdon leaseholdon leasehold Leasehold Leasehold Leasehold Leasehold furniture andfurniture andfurniture andfurniture and MotorMotorMotorMotor

GROUPGROUPGROUPGROUP buildingsbuildingsbuildingsbuildings propertypropertypropertyproperty buildingsbuildingsbuildingsbuildings equipmentequipmentequipmentequipment vehiclesvehiclesvehiclesvehicles TotalTotalTotalTotal

££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££

CostCostCostCost

At 1 April 2018 4,269,710 3,222,920 411,821 2,261,840 193,722 10,360,013

Additions - 51,454 4,018 106,316 40,131 201,919

Disposal - - - (3,827) - (3,827)

At 31 March 2019 4,269,710 3,274,374 415,839 2,364,329 233,853 10,558,105

Accumulated depreciationAccumulated depreciationAccumulated depreciationAccumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2018 1,575,550 1,518,464 398,996 2,025,770 193,721 5,712,501

Charge for the year 87,352 92,897 4,642 161,666 10,032         356,589

Disposal -              -              -              3,827-           -              (3,827)

At 31 March 2019 1,662,902 1,611,361 403,638 2,183,609 203,753 6,065,263

Net book valueNet book valueNet book valueNet book value

At 31 March 2019 2,606,808 1,663,013 12,201 180,720 30,100 4,492,842

At 31 March 2018 2,694,160 1,704,456 12,825 236,070 1 4,647,512

FreeholdFreeholdFreeholdFreehold ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure FurnitureFurnitureFurnitureFurniture

CHARITYCHARITYCHARITYCHARITY land andland andland andland and on leaseholdon leaseholdon leaseholdon leasehold andandandand MotorMotorMotorMotor

buildingsbuildingsbuildingsbuildings propertypropertypropertyproperty equipmentequipmentequipmentequipment vehiclesvehiclesvehiclesvehicles TotalTotalTotalTotal

££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££

CostCostCostCost

At 1 April 2018 4,269,710 3,222,920 1,841,422 149,180 9,483,232

Additions -              51,454 75,215 39,241 165,910

Disposals -              -              -              -              -                 

At 31 March 2019 4,269,710 3,274,374 1,916,637 188,421 9,649,142

Accumulated depreciationAccumulated depreciationAccumulated depreciationAccumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2018 1,575,550 1,518,464 1,618,923 149,179 4,862,116

Charge for the year 87,352 92,897 146,262 9,810 336,321

Disposals -              -              -              -              -                 

At 31 March 2019 1,662,902 1,611,361 1,765,185 158,989 5,198,437

Net book valueNet book valueNet book valueNet book value

At 31 March 2019 2,606,808 1,663,013 151,452 29,432 4,450,705

At 31 March 2018 2,694,160 1,704,456 222,499 1 4,621,116

The St Ann's Hospice Pension Scheme has a 75% charge over the Freehold Land & Buildings.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Key Management Personnel

The key management personnel of the parent charity and group are the same and are listed on page 77.
The total remuneration (including pension contributions and employer’s national insurance costs)
of the key management personnel of the charity and group for the year totalled £493,109 (2018: £424,108).

Trustees remuneration

No Trustees received any remuneration during the current or prior year. No travel and subsistence expenses were paid during the year 
(2018: £Nil)
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14 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

2019 2018

£ £

Market value at 1 April 2018 6,322,885 6,202,152

Additions 1,857,400 817,964

Disposals proceeds (1,791,853) (665,207)

Net Investment Gain/(Loss) 146,648 (5,240)

Movement in cash held by investment managers 54,259 (26,784)

Market value at 31 March 2019 6,589,339 6,322,885

Cost at 31st March 2019 5,975,114 5,544,680

Market value analysed between: £ £

Investments 6,467,155 6,254,961

Cash held by investment managers 122,184 67,924

6,589,339 6,322,885

Investment in Hospice Quality Partnership 10 10

Total Group Investment 6,589,349 6,322,895

Investment in Subsidiary Trading Company 2 2

Charity Investment 6,589,351 6,322,897

The Hospice Quality Partnership Company is owned by Hospices and was formed to help hospices save

money by improving procurement, reducing operating costs and sharing data for best practice.

The charity owns the entire issued ordinary share capital of St Ann's Hospice Trading Company Limited, a

company incorporated and registered in England and Wales, whose principal activity is the management

of the charity's trading activities.

The result of the charity's trading activities through its subsidiary underatking is detailed below. St Ann's 

Hospice Trading Company Limited's taxable profits are donated to the charity annually.

     Group & Charity

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019

The Hospice Quality Partnership Company is owned by Hospices and was formed to help hospices save money by improving 
procurement, reducing operating costs and sharing data for best practice.

The charity owns the entire issued ordinary share capital of St Ann’s Hospice Trading Company Limited, a company incorporated and 
registered in England and Wales, whose principal activity is the management of the charity’s trading activities.

The result of the charity’s trading activities through its subsidiary underatking is detailed below. St Ann’s Hospice Trading Company 
Limited’s taxable profits are donated to the charity annually.
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14 FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

RESULTS OF TRADING SUBSIDIARY

The results for St Ann's Hospice Trading Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of St Ann's Hospice

for the year ended 31 March 2019 are given below.

2019 2018

£ £

Turnover 2,299,876 2,213,111

Cost of sales (285,522) (285,021)

Gross profit 2,014,354 1,928,090

Administrative expenses (1,501,473) (1,432,435)

Operating profit 512,881 495,655

Interest receivable -                 7

Profit before taxation 512,881 495,662

Tax on profit (781) (136)

Profit for the financial year attributable to the equity shareholders 

of the company 512,100 495,526

Statement of changes in equity

Profit and 

loss account

£

Balance at 1 April 2017 -

Profit after tax for the year 495,526

Gift aid distribution (495,526)

Balance at 31 March 2018 -

Profit after tax for the year 512,100

Gift aid distribution (512,100)

Balance at 31 March 2019 -

BALANCE SHEET

The aggregate of the assets and liabilities was:

2019 2018

£ £

Fixed assets 42,135 26,394

Current assets 589,278 562,917

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (631,411) (589,309)

Total net assets 2 2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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15. STOCKS

              Group            Charity

2019 2018 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

Finished goods and goods for resale 55,873 61,625 3,265 3,265

16. DEBTORS

              Group            Charity

2019 2018 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

Trade debtors 123,479 76,000 113,990 56,408

VAT Recoverable 215,146 187,714 201,523 187,714

Prepayments and accrued income 188,761 171,705 115,100 115,004

Other debtors 1,349,270 1,254,008 1,315,407 1,242,712

Amounts due from subsidiary company - - 200,906 102,439

1,876,656 1,689,427 1,946,926 1,704,277

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

              Group            Charity

2019 2018 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

Interest bearing accounts 6,018,083 8,223,515 5,618,400 7,822,824

Current accounts and cash 9,403 9,603 1,608 1,658

6,027,486 8,233,118 5,620,008 7,824,482

18. CREDITORS (Amounts falling due within one year)

              Group            Charity

2019 2018 2019 2018

£ £ £ £

Trade Creditors 293,161 359,216 216,304 301,742

Accruals and deferred income 439,375 503,837 222,186 255,470

Taxation and social security 155,353 138,515 140,660 125,927

Other creditors 110,039 143,037 49,423 44,742

Corporation tax 62,596 61,815 - -

1,060,524 1,206,420 628,573 727,881

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19. COMPARATIVE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted Restricted Total funds

funds funds 2018

£ £ £

INCOME FROM:

Voluntary income

Donations and legacies 3 4,641,331 35,164 4,676,495

Charitable activities 4 3,140,206 992,569 4,132,775

Other trading activities 5 2,254,880 - 2,254,880

Investments 6 195,861 1,925 197,786

TOTAL INCOME 10,232,278 1,029,658 11,261,936

EXPENDITURE ON:

Raising funds 7 2,362,129 - 2,362,129

Charitable activities 8 8,005,668 1,030,424 9,036,092

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 10,367,797 1,030,424 11,398,221

Net expenditure before investment losses (135,519) (766) (136,285)

Net losses on Investments 14 (5,240) - (5,240)

Net expenditure before tax 10 (140,759) (766) (141,525)

Taxation 12 (136) - (136)

Net expenditure for the year (140,895) (766) (141,661)

Transfer Between Funds 20 16,846 (16,846) -

Other Recognised Gaisn/(Losses):

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Schemes 22 (68,000) - (68,000)

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS (192,049) (17,612) (209,661)

FUND BALANCES BROUGHT FORWARD AT

1st April 2017 14,678,295 110,523 14,788,818

FUND BALANCES CARRIED FORWARD AT

31st March 2018 20,21 14,486,246 92,911 14,579,157

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2019
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20 STATEMENT OF RESERVES

2019 Group At 1 April Income Expenditure Gains/ Transfers At 31 March

2018 (incl taxation) (losses) 2019

£ £ £ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds:

General fund 5,338,734 10,655,624 (10,832,661) 269,648 171,516 5,602,861

Designated funds

  Fixed assets 4,647,512 - - - (154,670) 4,492,842

  Property refurbishment and

    development 4,500,000 - - - - 4,500,000

Unrestricted funds 14,486,246 10,655,624 (10,832,661) 269,648 16,846 14,595,703

Restricted Fund

Specific donations 92,911 1,178,338 (1,030,424) - (16,846) 223,979

14,579,157 11,833,962 (11,863,085) 269,648 - 14,819,682

2019 CHARITY At 1 April Income Expenditure Gains/ Transfers At 31 March

2018 (losses) 2019

£ £ £ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds:

General fund 5,365,128 8,905,848 (9,082,885) 269,648 187,257 5,644,996

Designated funds

  Fixed assets 4,621,116 - - - (170,411) 4,450,705

  Subsidiary 2 - - - - 2

  Property refurbishment and

    development 4,500,000 - - - - 4,500,000

Unrestricted funds 14,486,246 8,905,848 (9,082,885) 269,648 16,846 14,595,703

Restricted Fund

Specific donations 92,911 1,178,338 (1,030,424) - (16,846) 223,979

14,579,157 10,084,186 (10,113,309) 269,648 - 14,819,682

The restricted reserves relate to donations or grants given with restrictions on the uses for the comfort

of patients or for capital purchases. Once the capital purchases have been made the restriction is released 

and transferred to unrestricted funds.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The restricted reserves relate to donations or grants given with restrictions on the uses for the comfort of patients or for capital purchases. 
Once the capital purchases have been made the restriction is released and transferred to unrestricted funds.
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20 STATEMENT OF RESERVES (continued)20 STATEMENT OF RESERVES (continued)20 STATEMENT OF RESERVES (continued)20 STATEMENT OF RESERVES (continued)

2018 Group2018 Group2018 Group2018 Group At 1 AprilAt 1 AprilAt 1 AprilAt 1 April IncomeIncomeIncomeIncome ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure Gains/Gains/Gains/Gains/ TransfersTransfersTransfersTransfers At 31 MarchAt 31 MarchAt 31 MarchAt 31 March

2017201720172017 (incl taxation)(incl taxation)(incl taxation)(incl taxation) (losses)(losses)(losses)(losses) 2018201820182018

££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££

Unrestricted funds:

General fund 5,332,623 10,232,278 (10,367,933) (73,240) 215,006 5,338,734

Designated funds

  Fixed assets 4,845,672 - - - (198,160) 4,647,512

  Property refurbishment and

    development 4,500,000 - - - - 4,500,000

Unrestricted funds 14,678,295 10,232,278 (10,367,933) (73,240) 16,846 14,486,246

Restricted Fund

Specific donations 110,523 1,029,658 (1,030,424) - (16,846) 92,911

14,788,818 11,261,936 (11,398,357) (73,240) - 14,579,157

2018  CHARITY2018  CHARITY2018  CHARITY2018  CHARITY At 1 AprilAt 1 AprilAt 1 AprilAt 1 April IncomeIncomeIncomeIncome ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure Gains/Gains/Gains/Gains/ TransfersTransfersTransfersTransfers At 31 MarchAt 31 MarchAt 31 MarchAt 31 March

2017201720172017 (losses)(losses)(losses)(losses) 2018201820182018

££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££ ££££

Unrestricted funds:

General fund 5,368,330 8,580,231 (8,715,886) (73,240) 205,693 5,365,128

Designated funds

  Fixed assets 4,809,963 - - - (188,847) 4,621,116

  Subsidiary 2 - - - - 2

  Property refurbishment and

    development 4,500,000 - - - - 4,500,000

Unrestricted funds 14,678,295 8,580,231 (8,715,886) (73,240) 16,846 14,486,246

Restricted Fund

Specific donations 110,523 1,029,658 (1,030,424) - (16,846) 92,911

14,788,818 9,609,889 (9,746,310) (73,240) - 14,579,157

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21 ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BETWEEN FUNDS

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds

2019 GROUP £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 4,492,842 - 4,492,842
Investments 6,589,349 - 6,589,349
Current assets 7,736,035 223,979 7,960,014
Current liabilities (1,060,524) - (1,060,524)
Provision for pension scheme liability (3,162,000) (3,162,000)
At 31 March 2019 14,595,702 223,979 14,819,681

2019 CHARITY
Tangible fixed assets 4,450,705 - 4,450,705
Investments 6,589,351 - 6,589,351
Current assets 7,346,219 223,979 7,570,198
Current liabilities (628,573) - (628,573)
Provision for pension scheme liability (3,162,000) - (3,162,000)
At 31 March 2019 14,595,702 223,979 14,819,681

2018 GROUP
Tangible fixed assets 4,647,512 - 4,647,512
Investments 6,322,895 - 6,322,895
Current assets 9,891,259 92,911 9,984,170
Current liabilities (1,206,420) - (1,206,420)
Provision for pension scheme liability (5,169,000) - (5,169,000)
At 31 March 2018 14,486,246 92,911 14,579,157

2018 CHARITY
Tangible fixed assets 4,621,116 - 4,621,116
Investments 6,322,897 - 6,322,897
Current assets 9,439,114 92,911 9,532,025
Current liabilities (727,881) - (727,881)
Provision for pension scheme liability (5,169,000) - (5,169,000)
At 31 March 2018 14,486,246 92,911 14,579,157

22 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Group and charity

The charity has three active pensions schemes for staff and these are described below. The contribution to the 
St Ann's Hospice Defined Benefit pension scheme includes the recovery plan payment of £200,000.

Pension Scheme
Contribut- 

ions Paid
Recognised 

in SoFA
2019 2019
£'000 £'000

NHS Pension 325 325
Stakeholder 152 152
St Ann's Hospice Defined Benefit 2,232 (225)

2,709 252

The contribution to the St Ann's Hospice Defined Benefit pension scheme includes the recovery plan
payment of £200,000 described below.

`
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22222222 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

National Health Superannuation SchemeNational Health Superannuation SchemeNational Health Superannuation SchemeNational Health Superannuation Scheme

The Hospice is an admitted body for the purposes of the National Health Service Superannuation Scheme 

and members of staff who are former NHS employees are able to continue membership of the Scheme

during their employment at St Ann's.

The assets of the scheme are held separately by the National Health Service Superannuation Scheme.

Contributions to the scheme are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities so as to spread the cost of

pensions over employees working lives with the group.  This pension scheme does not have a real 

pension fund. But as a statutory scheme, benefits are fully guaranteed by the Government.  Contributions

from both members and Employers are paid to the Exchequer, which meet the cost of increasing benefits

each year by the rate of inflation.  This extra cost is not met by contributions from Scheme members or 

Employers.  

As a result of the nature of the pension scheme, there are no separately identifiable assets

and liabilities which can be identified as relating to St Ann's Hospice therefore, the scheme has been accounted for

as a defined contribution scheme. 

The pension cost charge for the year amounted to £324,743 (2018: £316,512). An amount of £46,313

(2018: £39,587) is included in creditors, being the outstanding contributions to the scheme at the balance sheet date.

Stakeholder Pension SchemeStakeholder Pension SchemeStakeholder Pension SchemeStakeholder Pension Scheme

 The group supports a Stakeholder Pension Scheme which has been offered to staff since the closure

of the defined benefit scheme.

The stakeholder pension scheme is operated by Scottish Widows.  Employee

contributions are collected by St Ann's Hospice and the matching employers contribution passed

to Scottish Widows.  

All the assets of the scheme are held by Scottish Widows.  As a result there are no separately identifiable

assets or liabilities which can be identified as relating to St Ann's Hospice. Therefore the scheme has been

accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.

The pension cost charge for the year amounted to £151,966 (2018: £125,635). An amount of Nil

(2017: Nil) is included in creditors, being the outstanding contributions to the scheme at the 

balance sheet date.

Federated Flexiplan No1 Pension SchemeFederated Flexiplan No1 Pension SchemeFederated Flexiplan No1 Pension SchemeFederated Flexiplan No1 Pension Scheme

The Federated Flexiplan NO. 1 ("the Plan") is a defined benefit pension scheme. It is a "last man standing scheme" which

means that all participating employers are joint and severally liable for the Plan's liabilities. However, because of the non 

associated multi-employer nature of the plan, the Company does not have sufficient information available (in particular

to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the Plan) to use defined benefit accounting. As such and as

permitted by FRS 102, it accounts for the Plan as if it were a defined contribution scheme. As a result, the amount recognised

in the SoFA represents the Company's contributions to the plan in respect of the accounting period.

Members of the plan are entitled to benefits on either a "Pensions Capital" or "Target Pension" basis. Under the Pensions

Capital basis, contributions paid by and in respect of members are accumulated up to retirement and then used to secure

benefits for the member. Under the Target Pension basis, members receive a defined pension at retirement based on length 

of service in the plan and their Pensionable Salary at date of leaving. The Plan is closed to new members and to future

accrual of benefits.

Buy out of Scheme LiabilitiesBuy out of Scheme LiabilitiesBuy out of Scheme LiabilitiesBuy out of Scheme Liabilities

The Scheme Trustee entered a buy-in covering the full scheme liabilities with an insurer in February 2017

and anticipates that the transition to achieve full buy-out will be finalised in the first half of 2018. When

that process is completed there will be no further legal or financial obligations to the scheme.

Recovery PlanRecovery PlanRecovery PlanRecovery Plan

As the plan was in deficit at the latest actuarial valuation at 31st March 2015 a recovery plan was put into place. 

Under this recovery plan, contributions of £2,063,417 per annum are payable from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

and £1,555,556 per annum are payable from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019. However, the Scheme Actuary has

now certified that no further contributions are required to be made in respect of the two years commencing 1 April 2017.

The Company's agreed share of these contributions is £815 per annum from 1 April 2016. No other contributions are due

from the company.

Contributions paid during the year Nil (2017 Nil)
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National Health Superannuation Scheme

The Hospice is an admitted body for the purposes of the National Health Service Superannuation Scheme and members of staff who are 
former NHS employees are able to continue membership of the Scheme during their employment at St Ann’s.

The assets of the scheme are held separately by the National Health Service Superannuation Scheme.

Contributions to the scheme are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees 
working lives with the group. This pension scheme does not have a real pension fund. But as a statutory scheme, benefits are fully 
guaranteed by the Government. Contributions from both members and Employers are paid to the Exchequer, which meet the cost of 
increasing benefits each year by the rate of inflation. This extra cost is not met by contributions from Scheme members or Employers.

As a result of the nature of the pension scheme, there are no separately identifiable assets and liabilities which can be identified as relating 
to St Ann’s Hospice therefore, the scheme has been accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.

The pension cost charge for the year amounted to £324,743 (2018: £316,512). An amount of £46,313 (2018: £39,587) is included in 
creditors, being the outstanding contributions to the scheme at the balance sheet date.

Stakeholder Pension Scheme

The group supports a Stakeholder Pension Scheme which has been offered to staff since the closure of the defined benefit scheme.

The stakeholder pension scheme is operated by Scottish Widows. Employee contributions are collected by St Ann’s Hospice and the 
matching employers contribution passed to Scottish Widows.

All the assets of the scheme are held by Scottish Widows. As a result there are no separately identifiable assets or liabilities which can be 
identified as relating to St Ann’s Hospice. Therefore the scheme has been accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.

The pension cost charge for the year amounted to £151,966 (2018: £125,635). An amount of Nil (2018: Nil) is included in creditors, being 
the outstanding contributions to the scheme at the balance sheet date.

Federated Flexiplan No1 Pension Scheme

The Federated Flexiplan NO. 1 (“the Plan”) was a defined benefit pension scheme. It was a “last man standing scheme” which meant that 
all participating employers were joint and severally liable for the Plan’s liabilities. However, because of the non associated multi-employer 
nature of the plan, the Company did not have sufficient information available (in particular to identify its share of the underlying assets 
and liabilities of the Plan) to use defined benefit accounting. As such and as permitted by FRS 102, it accounted for the Plan as if it were a 
defined contribution scheme. As a result, the amount which was recognised in the SoFA represented the Company’s contributions to the 
plan in respect of the accounting period.

Members of the plan were entitled to benefits on either a “Pensions Capital” or “Target Pension” basis. Under the Pensions Capital basis, 
contributions paid by and in respect of members are accumulated up to retirement and then used to secure benefits for the member. 
Under the Target Pension basis, members receive a defined pension at retirement based on length of service in the plan and their 
Pensionable Salary at date of leaving. The Plan is closed to new members and to future accrual of benefits.

Buy out of Scheme Liabilities

The Scheme Trustee entered a buy-in covering the full scheme liabilities with an insurer in February 2017 and the transition to achieve full 
buy-out was finalised in May 2018. Following completion of this process there are no further legal or financial obligations to the scheme. 
Following the full buy out in May 2018 no payments were due from the company.

Contributions paid during the year were Nil (2018 Nil)

No other contributions are due from the company.
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St Ann's Hospice Pension SchemeSt Ann's Hospice Pension SchemeSt Ann's Hospice Pension SchemeSt Ann's Hospice Pension Scheme

The group operates a closed defined benefit scheme funded by contributions from members and from

the group.  The total pension cost of the group is assessed in accordance with the advice of an

independent actuary.

The assets of the pension scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund.

The most recent full actuarial valuation of scheme assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligations

were carried out at 31 March 2015. 

The Board of Directors are cognisant of their duty as an employer to ensure the solvency of the Pension

Scheme. Therefore, in consultation with the Trustees if the St Ann's Hospice Pensions Scheme

and upon advice of the actuary, the Board agreed in 2010 to a 10 year funding recovery plan for the Pension Scheme Trustees 

and salary capping for pension purposes has already been adopted. Other options may need to be considered in the future.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the current related service cost and past service cost

were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The projected unit credit method is an accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make

allowance for projected earnings. The accumulated benefit obligation us an actuarial measure of the present value

for service already rendered but differs from the projected unit credit method in that it includes no assumptions

for future salary increases.

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

%%%% %%%%

Discount rate 2.50 2.70

Expected return on assets 2.50 2.70

Rate of increase in salaries 1.00 1.00

Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.30 3.20

Mortality AssumptionsMortality AssumptionsMortality AssumptionsMortality Assumptions

Investigations have been carried out within the past three years into the mortality experience of the group's defined

benefit schemes. These investigations concluded that the current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance

for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

years years

Retiring today:

Males 85.8 85.9

Females 87.7 87.8
Retiring in 20 years

Males 87.5 87.7

Females 89.6 89.7

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

£000's£000's£000's£000's £000's£000's£000's£000's

Current service cost (235) (260)

Interest on obligations (416) (407)

Expected return on scheme assets 303 278

Total operating charge (348) (389)

Actuarial (loss)/gain 123 (68)

Total (cost)/income recognised in the statement of financial activities (225) (457)

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's obligations in respect of its defined The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's obligations in respect of its defined The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's obligations in respect of its defined The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's obligations in respect of its defined 

benefit scheme is as follows:benefit scheme is as follows:benefit scheme is as follows:benefit scheme is as follows:

    2019201920192019 2018201820182018

    £000's£000's£000's£000's £000's£000's£000's£000's

Present value of defined benefit obligations 15,800 15,600

Fair value of scheme assets (12,638) (10,431)

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 3,162 5,169
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St Ann's Hospice Pension SchemeSt Ann's Hospice Pension SchemeSt Ann's Hospice Pension SchemeSt Ann's Hospice Pension Scheme

The group operates a closed defined benefit scheme funded by contributions from members and from

the group.  The total pension cost of the group is assessed in accordance with the advice of an

independent actuary.

The assets of the pension scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund.

The most recent full actuarial valuation of scheme assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligations

were carried out at 31 March 2015. 

The Board of Directors are cognisant of their duty as an employer to ensure the solvency of the Pension

Scheme. Therefore, in consultation with the Trustees if the St Ann's Hospice Pensions Scheme

and upon advice of the actuary, the Board agreed in 2010 to a 10 year funding recovery plan for the Pension Scheme Trustees 

and salary capping for pension purposes has already been adopted. Other options may need to be considered in the future.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the current related service cost and past service cost

were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The projected unit credit method is an accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make

allowance for projected earnings. The accumulated benefit obligation us an actuarial measure of the present value

for service already rendered but differs from the projected unit credit method in that it includes no assumptions

for future salary increases.

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

%%%% %%%%

Discount rate 2.50 2.70

Expected return on assets 2.50 2.70

Rate of increase in salaries 1.00 1.00

Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.30 3.20

Mortality AssumptionsMortality AssumptionsMortality AssumptionsMortality Assumptions

Investigations have been carried out within the past three years into the mortality experience of the group's defined

benefit schemes. These investigations concluded that the current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance

for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

years years

Retiring today:

Males 85.8 85.9

Females 87.7 87.8
Retiring in 20 years

Males 87.5 87.7

Females 89.6 89.7

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

£000's£000's£000's£000's £000's£000's£000's£000's

Current service cost (235) (260)

Interest on obligations (416) (407)

Expected return on scheme assets 303 278

Total operating charge (348) (389)

Actuarial (loss)/gain 123 (68)

Total (cost)/income recognised in the statement of financial activities (225) (457)

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's obligations in respect of its defined The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's obligations in respect of its defined The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's obligations in respect of its defined The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group's obligations in respect of its defined 

benefit scheme is as follows:benefit scheme is as follows:benefit scheme is as follows:benefit scheme is as follows:

    2019201920192019 2018201820182018

    £000's£000's£000's£000's £000's£000's£000's£000's

Present value of defined benefit obligations 15,800 15,600

Fair value of scheme assets (12,638) (10,431)

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 3,162 5,169

St Ann’s Hospice Pension Scheme

The group operates a closed defined benefit scheme funded by contributions from members and from the group. The total pension cost 
of the group is assessed in accordance with the advice of an independent actuary.

The assets of the pension scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund.

The most recent full actuarial valuation of scheme assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at 31 
March 2015.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the current related service cost and past service cost were measured using the 
projected unit credit method.

The projected unit credit method is an accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make allowance for projected 
earnings. The accumulated benefit obligation us an actuarial measure of the present value for service already rendered but differs from the 
projected unit credit method in that it includes no assumptions for future salary increases.
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Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

£000's£000's£000's£000's £000's£000's£000's£000's

At 1 April 15,600 15,900

Current service cost 235 260

Interest cost 416 407

Contributions by scheme participants 16 20

Administrative Expenses (99) (106)

Actuarial losses/(gains) 209 (197)

Benefits paid (577) (684)

At 31 March 15,800 15,600

Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

£000's£000's£000's£000's £000's£000's£000's£000's

Opening fair value of scheme assets 10,431 10,949

Expected return on scheme assets 303 278

Actuarial gains/(losses) 332 (265)

Contributions by the employer 2,232 239

Contributions by scheme participants 16 20

Benefits paid (577) (684)

Administration Expenses (99) (106)

12,638 10,431

2019201920192019 2018201820182018

£000's£000's£000's£000's £000's£000's£000's£000's

Equities 6,867 6,560

Gilts and bonds 2,041 1,950

Cash 3,730 1,921

12,638 10,431

The analysis of the fair value of the scheme's assets at the balance sheet date was as The analysis of the fair value of the scheme's assets at the balance sheet date was as The analysis of the fair value of the scheme's assets at the balance sheet date was as The analysis of the fair value of the scheme's assets at the balance sheet date was as 

follows:follows:follows:follows:
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23 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:

GROUP Land and Land and

buildings Other buildings Other

Leases which expire: £ £ £ £

within one year 176,200 18,464 166,025 13,837

between one and five years 385,996 25,104 392,371 25,061

after five years 267,200 - 299,600 -

829,396 43,567 857,996 38,898

Land and Land and

CHARITY buildings Other buildings Other

£ £ £ £

Leases which expire:

within one year 4,400 10,646 4,400 10,937

within one to five years 17,600 6,472 17,600 18,283

over five years 57,200 - 61,600 -

79,200 17,117 83,600 29,220

2019 2018
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24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions between the charity and its subsidiary, St Ann's Hospice Trading Company Ltd, are
eliminated on consolidation.

No trustee received payment for professional or other services supplied to the charity during the year (2018: Nil)

The total value of donations received from the directors during the year was £610 (2018: £1,000)

23 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:

GROUP Land and Land and

buildings Other buildings Other

Leases which expire: £ £ £ £

within one year 176,200 18,464 166,025 13,837

between one and five years 385,996 25,104 392,371 25,061

after five years 267,200 - 299,600 -

829,396 43,567 857,996 38,898

Land and Land and

CHARITY buildings Other buildings Other

£ £ £ £

Leases which expire:

within one year 4,400 10,646 4,400 10,937

within one to five years 17,600 6,472 17,600 18,283

over five years 57,200 - 61,600 -

79,200 17,117 83,600 29,220

2019 2018

All transactions between the charity and its subsidiary, St Ann’s Hospice Trading Company Ltd, are eliminated on consolidation.

No trustee received payment for professional or other services supplied to the charity during the year (2018: Nil)

The total value of donations received from the directors during the year was £610 (2018: £1,000)
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members 
and Trustees of St Ann’s Hospice
Report on the audit of the 
Financial Statements
Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of 
St Ann’s Hospice (the ‘charitable company’) and its 
subsidiaries (the ‘group’):

• give a true and fair view of the state of the 
company’s affairs as at 31st March 2019 and of 
the group’s incoming resources and application 
of resources, including the group’s income and 
expenditure, for the year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with 
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 
102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable 
in the UK and Republic of Ireland”; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which 
comprise:

• the consolidated statement of financial activities;

• the group and parent charitable company 
balance sheets;

• the consolidated cash flow statement; and

• the related notes 1 to 24.

The financial reporting framework that has been 
applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including 
Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the 
auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the group and of the parent 
charitable company in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial 
Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going 
concern
We are required by ISAs (UK) to report in respect of 
the following matters where:

• the trustees’ use of the going concern basis 
of accounting in preparation of the financial 
statements is not appropriate; or

• the trustees have not disclosed in the financial 
statements any identified material uncertainties 
that may cast significant doubt about the group’s 
and the parent charitable company’s ability to 
continue to adopt the going concern basis of 
accounting for a period of at least twelve months 
from the date when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these 
matters.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, other 
than the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements 
does not cover the other information and, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, we are 
required to determine whether there is a material 
misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on 
the work we have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these 
matters.

Responsibilities of the trustees
As explained more fully in the trustees’ 
responsibilities statement, the trustees (who are 
also the directors of the charitable company for 
the purpose of company law) are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements and for 
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and 
for such internal control as the trustees determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are 
responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent 
charitable company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the trustees either intend to 
liquidate the group or the parent charitable company 
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the
FRC’s website at: 
www.frc.org.uk auditorsresponsibilities. 
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters 
prescribed by the companies act 
2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the 
course of the audit:

• the information given in the trustees’ report, 
which includes the strategic report and the 
directors’ report prepared for the purposes of 
company law for the financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared is consistent 
with the financial statements; and

• the strategic report and the directors’ report 
included within the trustees’ report have been 
prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding 
of the company and its environment obtained in 
the course of the audit, we have not identified any 
material misstatements in the strategic report or the 
directors’ report included within the trustees’ report.
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Matters on which we are required to report by 
exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to 
report in respect of the following matters if, in our 
opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept 
by the parent charitable company, or returns 
adequate for our audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by us; or

• the parent charitable company financial 
statements are not in agreement with the 
accounting records and returns; or

• certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration 
specified by law are not made; or

• we have not received all the information and 
explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these 
matters.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the charitable company’s 
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of 
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work 
has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
charitable company’s members those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and 
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the charitable company and the 
charitable company’s members as a body, for our 
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.

Sarah Anderson FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Manchester, United Kingdom

Date
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Officers and Professional Advisors
Trustees and Officers
PRESIDENT

The Right Reverend Dr David Walker, 
Bishop of Manchester

VICE PRESIDENTS

Mr Warren Smith KStJ JP DLitt LLD, HM 
Lord Lieutenant of Greater Manchester

Mr Stephen Chetwood

Mr Neil Cliffe 

Mr Terry Lewis 

Mr John McGuire

Mrs Anne Mack

Mrs Ann Hughes

TRUSTEES

CHAIR

Professor Jacqueline Oldham BSc(Hons) RGN PhD 

HON. TREASURER

Mr Allan Beardsworth MA (Cantab) ACA CTA 
(resigned 15 February 2019)

Mr Alan Bond (acting 16 February – 13 May 2019)

Mr Darren Holt BA ACA (appointed 13 May 2019) 

Mr Mike Brown (Vice Chair) MSc FHSM CMIPM

Dr Stephanie Gomm MD FRCP

Mr Luke Dillon BA

Mr Alan Bond FCCA, ACIS

Mrs Fiona Taylor RGN, RM, RHV, Dip HE, 
BSc(Hons), MA

Ms Kate Squire BA (Hons)

Mr Steven Wilson CPFA BA (Hons) DipMHC

Ms Melanie Odgen MRPharmS
(appointed 13 May 2019)
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Key Management Personnel
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Eamonn O’Neal DL BEd MSc DArts

DEPUTY CEO

DIRECTOR OF CLINICAL SERVICES

Rachel McMillan RGN BA(Hons) MSc

MEDICAL DIRECTOR

Dr Philip Lomax MRCP

ASSOCIATE MEDICAL DIRECTOR

Dr David Waterman MBBS FRCP
(appointed 10 June 2019)

DIRECTOR OF ORGANISATIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT & SUPPORT SERVICES

Gill Turnpenney BA(Hons) CMCIPD
     

DIRECTOR OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Dr Paul Jarvis MEng MSc PhD

Professional Advisors and 
Registered Office
SOLICITORS

Brabners LLP

55 King Street, Manchester M2 4LQ

and

Exchange Flags, Liverpool L2 3YL

AUDITOR

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
2 Hardman Street, Manchester M3 3HF

INVESTMENT MANAGERS

Brewin Dolphin

1 The Avenue
Spinningfields Square, Manchester M3 3AP

BANKERS

The Royal Bank of Scotland

5th Floor
1 Spinningfields Square, Manchester M3 3AP

REGISTERED & PRINICPAL OFFICE

St Ann’s Hospice

St Ann’s Road North
Heald Green, Stockport SK8 3SZ

ST ANN’S HOSPICE TRADING CO LTD

Subsidiary of St Ann’s Hospice



Contact details 
St Ann’s Hospice
St Ann’s Road North, Heald Green, 
Cheadle, 
Cheshire SK8 3SZ
Tel: 0161 437 8136

St Ann’s Hospice
Meadowsweet Lane, off Peel Lane, 
Little Hulton, Worsley, 
Manchester M28 0FE
Tel: 0161 702 8181

Neil Cliffe Centre
Wythenshawe Hospital, 
Southmoor Road, Wythenshawe, 
Manchester M23 9LT
Tel: 0161 291 2912

         www.sah.org.uk          www.facebook.com/StAnnsHospice          @StAnnsHospice        @StAnnsHospice
Registered charity number 258085. Registered in England No. 947220.


